St. Clairsville, Ohio June 12, 2024

The Board of Commissioners of Belmont County, Ohio, met this day in regular session. Present: Jerry Echemann, Josh Meyer and J. P. Dutton, Commissioners and Bonnie Zuzak, Clerk of the Board.

MEETINGS ARE NOW BEING RECORDED ALL DISCUSSIONS ARE SUMMARIZED. FOR COMPLETE PROCEEDINGS PLEASE SEE CORRESPONDING CD FOR THIS MEETING DAY.

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING RECAPITULATION

OF VOUCHERS FOR THE VARIOUS FUNDS

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve and sign all bills that have been certified in the Auditor's office and considered by the Board. It is hereby ordered that the County Auditor issue his warrant on the County Treasurer in payment of the bills allowed:

IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF \$2,537,538.27

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF TRANSFERS WITHIN FUND

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the following transfers within fund for the following funds:

A00 GENERAL FUND

FROM	TO	AMOUNT
E-0059-A009-A06.000 Other Expenses	E-0059-A009-A00.002 Salary	\$10,000.00
E-0059-A009-A06.000 Other Expenses	E-0059-A009-A01.003 PERS	\$3,000.00
E-0059-A009-A06.000 Other Expenses	E-0059-A009-A07.010 Supplies	\$1,500.00
S12 PORT AUTHORITY		
FROM	TO	AMOUNT
E-9799-S012-S07.000 Professional Services	E-9799-S012-S11.005 Medicare	\$1,000.00
S30 OAKVIEW JUVENILE REHABILITATION		
FROM	TO	AMOUNT
E-8010-S030-S51.002 Salaries	E-8010-S030-S55.010 Supplies	\$5,000.00
E-8010-S030-S51.002 Salaries	E-8010-S030-S60.000 Maintenance	\$8,150.00
E-8010-S030-S51.002 Salaries	E-8010-S030-S63.000 General	\$19,500.00
E-8010-S030-S51.002 Salaries	E-8010-S030-S64.012 Equipment	\$53,400.00

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF TRANSFERS BETWEEN FUND

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the following transfers between funds as follows:

A00 GENERAL FUND AND E01 COUNTY HEALTH

FROM TO AMOUNT E-0051-A001-A10.000 Professional Services R-2210-E001-E17.574 Transfers In \$5,833.33

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to make the following additional appropriations, in accordance with the Official Certificate of Estimated Resources as approved by the Budget Commission, under the following dates:

JANUARY 03, 2024 Y02 MUNICIPAL AUTO LICENSE/ENGINEER

E-9802-Y002-Y10.000	Village of Bellaire	\$127,989.23	
JUNE 12, 2024			
A00 GENERAL FUND			
E-0131-A006-A04.002	Salaries-Road	\$1,000.00	
H05 WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT FUNI	<u>D/BCDJFS</u>		
E-2600-H005-H01.000	WIOA In-School Youth	\$70,000.00	
NO3 FEMA PROJECTS/ENGINEER			
E-9003-N003-N04.055	Construction	\$511.68	
NO8 DISASTER RELIEF 4424/ENGINEER			
E-9008-N008-N06.055	Construction	\$3,863.37	
N45 ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS/ENGIN			
E-9045-N045-N19.055	FEMA Project PID #108719	\$78,006.27	
E-9045-N045-N25.055	FEMA Project PID #108725	\$10,178.40	
O61 SEWER BOND RETIREMENT/BCWSI			
E-9261-O061-O06.050	OWDA Loan Payments	\$49,500.00	
E-9261-O061-O07.051	OWDA Interest Payments	\$16,500.00	
S30 OAKVIEW JUVENILE REHABILITATION			
E-8010-S030-S54.000	Food	\$3,408.46	

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF Y-95 EMPLOYERS SHARE PERS/

HOLDING ACCOUNT CHARGEBACKS FOR MAY 2024

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to make the following transfer of funds for the Y-95 Employer's Share PERS/Holding Account Chargebacks for the month of May 2024.

General fund			
AUDITOR	E-0011-A001-B09.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	5,264.35
AUD EMPL-PERS PROP	E-0012-A001-B14.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	470.40
AUD EMPL-REAL PROP	E-0013-A001-B18.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,008.00
CLERK OF COURTS	E-0021-A002-E09.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	4,395.78
CO. CT. EMPL	E-0040-A002-G08.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	7,060.84
CO CT. APPT EMP-JUDGES	E-0042-A002-J02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	476.00
COMMISSIONERS	E-0051-A001-A25.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	6,886.62
NURSES-JAIL	E-0052-A001-A91.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	4,982.29
COMM-DIS SERV	E-0054-A006-F05.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,628.50
COMM-MAINT & OP	E-0055-A004-B16.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	8,143.50
9-1-1 DEPT	E-0056-A006-E08.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	11,204.04
ANIMAL SHELTER	E-0057-A006-F05.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,193.29
LEPC	E-0058-A006-F02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	116.46
BEHAVORIAL HEALTH SERVICES	E-0059-A009-A01.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	596.96
COMM PLEAS CT EMPL	E-0061-A002-B14.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	4,252.48
MAGISTRATE	E-0063-A002-B28.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,486.16
ENGINEERS EMPL	E-0070-A012-A08.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	2,120.14
PROBATE CT EMPL	E-0081-A002-D10.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,971.82
PROBATE CT JUV EMPL	E-0082-A002-C36.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	6,661.26
PROSECUTING ATTNY	E-0111-A001-E09.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	9,440.66
RECORDER	E-0121-A006-B09.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	3,704.06
SHERIFF'S (PERS)	E-0131-A006-A13.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	29,020.16
TREASURER	E-0141-A001-C09.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	3,225.66
CORONER	E-0151-A002-F07.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,279.02
SOLDIER'S RELIEF	E-0160-A009-D07.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	5,056.44
PUBLIC DEFENDER	E-0170-A006-G09.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	5,053.77
BD OF ELECT/EMPLY	E-0181-A003-A09.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	3,634.93
BUDGET COMM	E-0210-A001-F02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	42.00
T. B. SAN	E-0300-A008-B10.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	34.29
			130,409.88
DOG & KENNEL	E-1600-B000-B08.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	2,846.26
COUNTY HEALTH	E-2210-E001-E10.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,890.05
Trailer Parks	E-2211-F069-F04.000	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	65.21
Home Sewage Treatment Sys	E-2227-F074-F06.000	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	730.90
Vital Statistics	E-2213-F075-F02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	471.36
Family Planning	E-2215-F077-F01.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	582.51
РНЕР	E-2231-F083-F01.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	516.57
NURSING PROGRAM	E-2232-F084-F02.008	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	520.17
Get Vaccinated Program	E-2236-F088-F01.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	18.07
Integrated Naloxone Grant (IN)	E-2237-F089-F01.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	297.60
Public Health Workforce (WF)	E-2238-F090-F01.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	444.81
Adolescent Health Resiliency	E-2241-F093-F08.000	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	277.13
Food Service	E-2218-G000-G06.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,188.04
Water System	E-2219-N050-N05.000	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	79.59

Pools/Spas	E-2220-P070-P01.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	147.90
HUMAN SERVICES	E-2510-H000-H12.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	53,060.55
C.S.E.A.	Е-2760-Н010-Н07.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	8,320.16
R.E. ASSESSMENT	E-1310-J000-J04.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,446.90
ENGINEER K-1 & K-2	E-2811-K000-K08.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	4,621.75
ENG EMP-MVGT K-11	E-2812-K000-K21.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	15,418.50
ENG EMP-BRIDGE K-25	E-2813-K000-K34.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	4,941.24
SOIL CONSERVATION	E-1810-L001-L11.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,808.80
Watershed Coordinator	E-1815-L005-L11.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	448.00
Care and Custody-C-Cap	E-0400-M060-M26.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,760.39
Alternative School	E-0400-M067-M02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,418.54
Title IV-E	E-0400-M078-M02.008	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,068.87
WW#3	E-3702-P005-P29.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	18,355.11
SSD#2	E-3705-P053-P13.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	5,085.10
Bel Co Port Authority	E-9799-S012-S08.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,626.14
OAKVIEW-JUVENILE	E-8010-S030-S66.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	13,703.41
DIST DET HOME	E-0910-S033-S44.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	15,115.20
MENTAL HEALTH	E-2310-S049-S60.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	4,892.60
COMM PLEAS/MEDIATION SRV	E-1544-S054-S02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	16.16
TARGETED COMM ALT PRISON	E-1545-S055-S02.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	2,325.11
PROBATION SERV GRNT-COMM	E-1546-S056-S04.001	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,152.30
BCBDD-MAIN FUND	E-2410-S066-S76.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	46,656.19
Bel Co Senior Programs	E-5005-S070-S02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	24,967.56
MHAS SUBSIDY GRANT	E-1518-S075-S03.002	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	656.92
CORRECTIONS ACT GRNT	E-1520-S077-S03.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	749.08
CLRK CRTS-TITLE DEPT	E-6010-S079-S06.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	2,676.80
NORTHERN CRT-SPECIAL	E-1561-S086-S02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	632.00
EASTERN CRT-SPECIAL	E-1571-S087-S02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	538.46
WEST CRT-SPECIAL	E-1551-S088-S02.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	538.64
WIC PROGRAM	E-4110-T075-T52.008	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	1,947.20
LAW LIBRARY	E-9720-W020-W03.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	282.70
DRETAC-PROSECUTOR	E-1510-W081-P05.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	845.70
DRETAC-TREASURER	E-1410-W082-T05.003	R-9895-Y095-Y01.500	260.96
		_	377,823.09

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes
Mr. Meyer Yes
Mr. Dutton Yes

$\underline{\textbf{IN THE MATTER OF TRANSFER OF FUNDS FOR}}$

HOSPITALIZATION CHARGEBACKS FOR MAY AND JUNE 2024

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to make the following transfer of funds for Hospitalization Chargebacks for the months of May and June 2024

From: To:
NUMBER ACCOUNT NUMB

NUMBER	ACCOUNT	NUMBER	AMOUNT
E-0170-A006-G10.000	PUBLIC DEFENDER	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	19,344.30
E-0181-A003-A11.000	BD OF ELECTIONS	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	20,412.90
E-0910-S033-S47.006	DETENTION HOME	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	50,031.24
E-1510-W081-P07.006	DRETAC-PROSECUTOR	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	5,336.58
E-1518-S075-S03.002	MHAS SUBSIDY GRANT	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	1,467.72

E-1520-S077-S04.006	CORRECTIONS ACT	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	3,868.86	
E-1546-S056-S04.001	PROBATION SERVICE GRANT	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	5,336.58	
E-1600-B000-B13.006	DOG & KENNEL	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	17,477.46	
E-1810-L001-L14.000	SOIL CONSERVATION	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	6,804.30	
E-1815-L005-L15.006	WATERSHED COORD.	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	3,868.86	
E-2310-S049-S63.000	MENTAL HEALTH	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	16,009.74	
E-2410-S066-S80.000	BCBDD-MAIN FUND	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	192,667.76	
E-2510-H000-H16.006	HUMAN SERVICES	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	204,988.41	
E-2760-H010-H12.006	CHILD SUPPORT	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	26,682.90	
E-2811-K200-K10.006	K-1	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	1,467.72	
E-2812-K000-K20.006	K-11	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	71,242.38	
E-2813-K000-K39.006	K-25	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	16,009.74	
E-4110-T075-T52.008	WIC	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	7,737.72	
E-5005-S070-S06.006	SENIOR SERVICE PROG	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	115,061.40	
E-6010-S079-S07.006	CLRK OF COURTS	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	7,886.78	
E-1561-S086-S03.006	Northern Court-Special	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	3,868.86	
E-1571-S087-S03.006	Eastern Court - Special	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	3,868.86	
E-1551-S088-S03.006	Western Court-Special	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	3,868.86	
E-8010-S030-S68.006	OAKVIEW JUVENILE	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	52,364.79	
E-9799-S012-S02.006	Port Authority	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	1,467.72	
E-9799-3012-302.000	WATER DEPARTS		1,407.72	
E-3702-P005-P31.000	WWS #3 Revenue	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	87,898.63	
E-3705-P053-P15.000	SSD #2 Revenue	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	23,240.20	
E-3703-1033-113.000	COUNTY HEAI		23,240.20	
E-2210-E001-E15.006	County Health	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	9,671.63	
E-2238-F090-F01.002	Public Health WorkForce (WF)	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	1,202.97	
E-2211-F069-F04.000	Trailer Park	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	241.80	
E-2227-F074-F06.000	Home Sewage Treatment Syst.	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	4,535.18	
E-2213-F075-F02.003	Vital Stats	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	240.01	
E-2231-F083-F01.002	Public Health Em Preparedness	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	1,542.86	
E-2231-F083-F01.002 E-2232-F084-F02.008	Visiting Nurse	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	486.15	
E-2215-F077-F01.002	Reproductive Health & Wellness	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	316.15	
E-2241-F093-F07.002	Adolescent Health Resil (AH)	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	2,365.85	
E-2236-F088-F01.002	Get Vaccinated Program	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	52.95	
E-2237-F089-F01.002	Intregated Naloxone Access/Infrat	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	1,592.76	
E-2218-G000-G06.003	Food Services	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	4,223.31	
E-2219-N050-N05.000	Water Systems	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	635.20	
E-2220-P070-P01.002	Swimming Pools/Spa	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	309.94	
JUV COURT/GRANTS				
E-0400-M067-M05.008	Alternative School	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	2,935.44	
E-0400-M060-M29.008	Care & Custody (C-Cap)	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	3,868.86	
E-0400-M078-M02.008	Title IV-E Reimbursement	R-9891-Y091-Y01.500	3,868.86	
		TOTALS	1,008,371.19	
Upon roll call the vo	te was as follows:			
	Mr. Echemann	Yes		
	Mr. Meyer	Yes		
	Mr. Dutton	Yes		

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING

THEN AND NOW CERTIFICATE/AUDITOR'S

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to execute payment of Then and Now Certification dated <u>June 12, 2024</u>, presented by the County Auditor pursuant to O.R.C. 5705.41(d) 1, and authorizing the drawing of warrant(s) in payment of amounts due upon contract to order.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF ACKNOWLEDGING BELMONT COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS RECEIVED AND REVIEWED THE INTEREST REPORT

AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO FOR THE MONTH OF MAY 2024

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to acknowledge the Belmont County Commissioners received and reviewed the following from the Belmont County Treasurer's Office:

• Interest Report and Investment Portfolio for the month of May 2024.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF ACKNOWLEDGING THE BELMONT COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS RECEIVED AND REVIEWED THE

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MAY 2024

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to acknowledge the Belmont County Commissioners received and reviewed the following from the Belmont County Auditor's Office:

• Monthly Financial Report for the month of May 2024.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF GRANTING PERMISSION

FOR COUNTY EMPLOYEES TO TRAVEL

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer granting permission for county employees to travel as follows: **DJFS-**Jeff Felton, John Regis, Jr., Lynne Zanke, Donna Yocum, Melissa Regis, Mike Schlanz, Stephanie Frey, Lisa Davis, Lauren Reed, Sarah

Smith and Brandy Smith to Lewis Center, OH, on October 6-8, 2024, to attend the 2024 Annual CFIS Conference. Estimated expenses: \$7,897.18.

SSOBC-Bethesda Senior Center employees to Kidron, OH, on July 11, 2024, for a senior outing to Amish Country. A county vehicle will be used for travel.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING MINUTES OF REGULAR

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the minutes of the Belmont County Board of Commissioners regular meeting of <u>June 5</u>, 2024.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

Mr. Echemann made the following announcements-

The Board of Commissioners' regular meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, June 18, 2024, instead of Wednesday, June 19, 2024, due to the Juneteenth holiday.

The Belmont County Board of Commissioners are accepting applications to fill positions on the Belmont County Port Authority Board. Applications will be accepted through June 28, 2024. Interested parties may stop in or contact the Commissioners' office at (740-699-2155) to request an application.

<u>IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING APPOINTMENT</u>

TO THE OMEGA MEMBERSHIP AND OMEGA

EXECUTIVE BOARD FOR 2024

Motion made by Mr. Meyer, seconded by Mr. Dutton to appoint Commissioner Jerry Echemann to the OMEGA Executive Board to fill the unexpired term of Commissioner Josh Meyer, effective immediately through December 31, 2024.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Meyer Yes
Mr. Dutton Yes
Mr. Echemann Yes

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE LABOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BELMONT

COUNTY ENGINEER AND AFSCME OHIO COUNCIL 8, AFL-CIO LOCAL #3285

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve and sign the Labor Agreement between the Belmont County Engineer and AFSCME Ohio Council 8, AFL-CIO Local #3285, effective May 1, 2024 through April 30, 2027.

Labor Agreement

Between
THE BELMONT COUNTY ENGINEER

and
AFSCME
Ohio Council 8,
AFL-CIO LOCAL #3285
May 1, 2024 through April 30, 2027
TABLE OF CONTENTS

ART. TITLE

PAGE

ARTICLE 1	PURPOSE OF CONTRACT	1
ARTICLE 2	UNION RECOGNITION	
ARTICLE 3	DUES DEDUCTION	2
ARTICLE 4	UNION REPRESENTATION	4
ARTICLE 5	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	5
ARTICLE 6	NO STRIKE / NO LOCKOUT	6
ARTICLE 7	PLEDGE AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION	
	AND COERCION	7
ARTICLE 8	DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	8
ARTICLE 9	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	9
ARTICLE 10	ARBITRATION	12
ARTICLE 11	BARGAINING UNIT APPLICATION TO	
	CIVIL SERVICE LAW	13
ARTICLE 12	LABOR MANAGEMENT MEETINGS	
ARTICLE 13	HEALTH AND SAFETY	
ARTICLE 14	SENIORITY	
ARTICLE 15	PROBATIONARY PERIODS	
ARTICLE 16	LATERAL TRANSFERS	17
ARTICLE 17	POSTING OF JOB OPENINGS	17
ARTICLE 18	TEMPORARY VACANCIES	
ARTICLE 19	LAYOFF AND RECALL	
ARTICLE 20	BARGAINING UNIT WORK	
ARTICLE 21	CALLIN PAY	22
ARTICLE 22	PAY PERIODS & PAYCHECKS	
ARTICLE 23	WASHUP TIME	
ARTICLE 24	BULLETIN BOARDS	
ARTICLE 25	HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	
ARTICLE 26	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	
ARTICLE 27	SICK LEAVE	
ARTICLE 28	MATERNITY LEAVE	
ARTICLE 29	UNION LEAVE	
ARTICLE 30	HOLIDAYS	
ARTICLE 31	VACATIONS	
ARTICLE 32	INSURANCE	
ARTICLE 33	LIABILITY INSURANCE	
ARTICLE 34	RETIREMENT PAY	
ARTICLE 35	WAGES	36
ARTICLE 36	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	38
ARTICLE 37	WAIVER IN CASE OF EMERGENCY	38
ARTICLE 38	DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING PROGRAM	
ARTICLE 39	COMMERCIAL DRIVERS LICENSE	
ARTICLE 40	EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM	
ARTICLE 41	ON-CALL PAY	39
ARTICLE 42	DURATION OF AGREEMENT	
SIGNATURE I	PAGE	40

ARTICLE 1 PURPOSE OF CONTRACT

<u>Section 1.1.</u> This Agreement, entered into by the Belmont County Engineer, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer", and Ohio Council 8, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFLCIO Local # 3285, hereinafter referred to as the "Union", has as its purpose the following:

To comply with the requirements of Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code; and to set forth the full and complete understandings and agreements between the parties governing the wages, hours, terms and other conditions of employment for those employees included in the bargaining unit as defined herein.

ARTICLE 2 UNION RECOGNITION

<u>Section 2.1.</u> The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative for all employees included in the bargaining unit as certified by the Ohio State Employment Relations Board, SERB Case No. 08-REP-02-0636 including:

Drafting Technician I Highway Worker I
Drafting Technician II Highway Worker II

Tax Map Clerk I Mechanic I
Bridge Worker I Mechanic II
Bridge Worker II Equipment Operator I
Welder I Equipment Operator II

Welder II Auto Body & Equipment Repair Worker

GIS Technician Clerk
Sign Worker

Section 2.2. All positions and classifications not specifically established herein as being included in the bargaining unit, shall be excluded from the bargaining unit subject to the following. Should the Employer create a new position or reclassify a position presently in the bargaining unit, the Employer agrees to meet with the Union within thirty (30) days to discuss the inclusion or exclusion from the bargaining unit, subject to the restrictions in Section 2.3. If the parties are unable to agree to the status of the position, the issue shall be subject to appeal by the Union to the State Employment Relation Board pursuant to Chapter 4117 ORC and the SERB rules and regulations.

Section 2.3. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article, management, confidential, professional, fiduciary, supervisory, casual, seasonal, and students whose primary purpose is education or training or who work as parttime employees less than fifty percent of the normal year shall be excluded from the bargaining unit.

<u>Section 2.4.</u> Newly hired probationary employees shall not be eligible to file a grievance under this Contract for any disciplinary, layoff or discharge action taken by the Employer during their probationary period.

ARTICLE 3 DUES DEDUCTION

<u>Section 3.1.</u> The Employer agrees to deduct regular Union membership dues once each month from the pay of any employee in the bargaining unit eligible for such deduction upon receiving written authorization signed individually and voluntarily by the employee. The signed payroll deduction form (see Appendix A) must be presented to the Employer by the employee. Upon receipt of the proper authorization, the Employer will deduct Union dues from the payroll check for the next pay period in which the authorization was received by the Employer.

Subject to the approval and authorization of the Belmont County Auditor, all deductions shall be deposited via electronic ACH transfers payment into the commercial bank account of Ohio Council 8, AFSCME, AFL-CIO no later than fifteen (15) days following the end of the pay period in which the deduction is made. The Union shall provide the Employer with authorization to make deposits into the financial institution utilized by the Union along with the routing number and account number of the Union's account. It is the Union's responsibility to notify the Employer in

writing of any change to the Union's account information. The County shall email, with each deduction and transmittal of dues/ fees, the following lists of information in Excel or Text format to oc8dues@afscme8.org, subject line: Local 3285, Pay Date.

- 1. Dues List: name, current address, phone number, department/work unit, last four digits of social security number and the amount of the deduction for each employee, as well as, the total amount of the dues deducted from all employees for the pay period of the report.
- 2. Non-member list. In alpha order by last name. The current name, address, phone number and department/work unit of each bargaining unit employee who are non-members.

Section 3.2. All deductions provided for in this Article, accompanied by an alphabetical list of all employees, their addresses and social security numbers, for whom deductions have been made, shall be transmitted to Controller Ohio Council 8 no later than the thirtyfirst (31) day following the end of the pay period in which the deduction is made.

Section 3.3. The parties agree that the Employer assumes no obligation, financial or otherwise, arising out of the provisions of this Article regarding the deduction of Union dues. The Union hereby agrees that it will indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from any claims, actions or proceedings by any employee arising from deductions made by the Employer pursuant to this Article. Once the funds are remitted to the Union, their disposition thereafter shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of the Union.

Section 3.4. The Employer shall be relieved from making such individual "checkoff" deductions upon an employee's: (1) termination of employment; (2) transfer to a job other than the one covered by the bargaining unit; (3) layoff from work; (4) an unpaid leave of absence; (5) written revocation of the checkoff authorization; in accordance with this Agreement; or (6) resignation by the employee from the Union.

Section 3.5. The Employer shall not be obligated to make dues deductions from any employee who, during any dues months involved, shall have failed to receive sufficient wages to make all legally required deductions in addition to the deduction of Union dues.

Section 3.6. The parties agree that neither the employees nor the Union shall have a claim against the Employer for errors in the processing of deductions, unless a claim of error is made to the Employer in writing within sixty (60) days after the date such an error is claimed to have occurred. If it is found an error was made, it will be corrected at the next pay period that the Union dues deduction would normally be made by deducting the proper amount.

Section 3.7. The rate at which dues are to be deducted shall be certified to the County Auditor by the treasurer of the Union during January of each year. One (1) month advance notice must be given the County Auditor prior to making any changes in an individual's dues deductions.

Section 3.8. Except as otherwise provided herein, each eligible employee's written authorization for dues deduction shall be honored by the Employer for the duration of this Agreement.

Section 3.9 <u>Union Membership Revocation/Maintenance of Membership</u> Employees who are members of the union may revoke their union membership at anytime by sending written notice to the Union of their desire to drop their union membership. Revocation of union membership does not revoke union dues authorization, which may only be revoked as set forth below.

<u>Union Dues Revocation</u> Any employee who has submitted a dues checkoff authorization card may withdraw or revoke the same Section 3.10 at the time and in the manner specified on the dues checkoff authorization card signed by the employee or as amended by the Union if the amendment specifies a shorter revocation period than one fifteen (15) day period tied to the end of the collective bargaining agreement. Copies of the employee's dues checkoff authorization cards are available from the Union upon request.

Section 3.11 The Employer will deduct voluntary contributions to AFSCME's Public Employees Organized to Promote Legislative Equality (PEOPLE) Committee from the pay of an employee upon receipt from the Union of an individual written authorization card voluntarily executed by the employee.

The contribution amount will be certified to the Employer by the Union. Monies deducted shall be remitted to the Union within five (5) to fifteen (15) days of the date they are deducted. Payment shall be made to the Treasurer of PEOPLE and transmitted to AFSCME, AFL-CIO, P.O. Box 65334, Washington, D.C. 20635. The payment will be accompanied by an alphabetical list of the names of those employees for whom a deduction was made and the amount of the deduction.

The list must be separate from the list of employees who had union dues deducted.

An employee shall have the right to revoke such authorization by giving written notice to the Employer and the Union at any time.

The Employer's obligation to make deductions shall terminate automatically upon receipt of revocation of authorization or upon termination of employment or transfer to a job classification outside the bargaining unit.

ALL PEOPLE contributions shall be made as a deduction separate from the dues.

Upon receipt of PEOPLE Deduction Cards voluntarily signed and submitted by bargaining unit members the Employer will authorize payroll deductions for such contributions. Such deductions shall begin within thirty (30) calendar days of approval of the contract.

The Union agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless from any claims, actions or proceedings by any employee arising from deductions made by the Employer pursuant to this Article. Once the funds are remitted to the Union, their disposition thereafter shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of the Union.

ARTICLE 4 UNION REPRESENTATION

Section 4.1. The Employer agrees to admit not more than one (1) Union staff representative to the Employer's facilities during the Employer's normal office business hours, Monday through Friday. The staff representative shall be admitted to the Employer's facilities and sites, for the purpose of investigating and processing grievances or attending meetings as permitted herein, providing reasonable advance notice is given to the Employer. Upon arrival, the Union staff representative shall identify himself to the Employer or the Employer's designated representative.

Section 4.2. The Employer shall recognize five (5) employees to act as Union stewards listed as follows for the purpose of processing grievances in accordance with the Grievance Procedure.

- A. Local Union President
- One (1) at Roscoe Garage and Courthouse В.
- One (1) at Lloydsville C.
- One (1) at Tacoma D.
- One (1) at Neffs

Section 4.3. The Union shall provide to the Employer an official roster of its officers and local Union steward which is to be kept current at all times and shall include the following:

- В. Address
- C. Home telephone number
- D. Immediate supervisor
- Union office held Ε.

No employee shall be recognized by the Employer as a Union representative until the Union has presented the Employer with written certification of that person's selection.

Section 4.4. The Union shall investigate and write grievances on nonduty time and/or their authorized break time or lunch time except as defined

The Local Union President or authorized stewards shall be permitted, with the approval of the Engineer, or the Engineer's designee, to utilize up to one (1) hour per day (charged in onehalf (1/2) hour increments to a total of five (5) hours per pay period for the investigating and writing of grievances.

If grievance hearings are scheduled during an employee's regular duty hours, the employee shall not suffer any loss of pay while attending the hearing.

<u>Section 4.5.</u> Rules governing the activity of Union representatives are as follows:

- The Union agrees that no official of the Union, employee or nonemployee, shall interfere, interrupt, or disrupt the normal work duties of other employees. The Union further agrees not to conduct Union business during working hours except to the extent specifically authorized herein.
- B. The Union shall not conduct Union activities in any work areas without notifying the supervisor in charge of that area of the nature of the Union activity.
- C. The Union employee official (Officer) shall cease Union activities immediately upon the verbal or written request of the supervisor of the area where the Union activity is being conducted or upon the request of the employee's immediate supervisor.

D. A Union employee official abusing the rules of this section may be subject to disciplinary action.

Section 4.6. - ADA Compliance The Union and the Employer agree this contract will comply with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should an employee with a bona fide disability under the ADA make a request for a reasonable accommodation under the Act, the employee has the right to Union representation during the process to identify the accommodation.

The Employer will make written notification to the Union in advance of any reasonable accommodation it proposes to make. The notice will include information concerning the nature of the accommodation to be made and, to the extent allowed by the affected employee and the law, the nature of the required restrictions. If the Union wishes to discuss the proposed accommodation, it will make a written request of the Employer for a meeting to discuss the proposed accommodation and/or the required restrictions within five (5) working days of the receipt of the Employer's notice. The parties will meet before any accommodation is made. The specific nature of the disability will be discussed with the Employer and with the Union, subject to written authorization of the employee. Prior to any accommodation, the Employee shall provide medical support and documentation for the disability, and the Employer may refer the Employee to a competent physician specializing in the Employee's disability for examination and conformation of the disability and the need for an accommodation. Such examination shall be at the Employer's expense.

ARTICLE 5 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

<u>Section 5.1.</u> Except as specifically limited herein, the Employer shall have the exclusive right to administer the business of the Belmont County Engineer's Department in addition to all other functions and responsibilities which are required by law. Specifically, the Employer's exclusive management rights include, but are not limited to the following:

- A. To manage and direct its employees, including the right to select, hire, promote, transfer, assign, evaluate, layoff and recall, or to reprimand, suspend, discharge, or discipline for just cause to maintain order among employees;
- B. To promulgate and enforce employment rules and regulations and to otherwise exercise the prerogatives of management;
- C. To manage and determine the location, type and number of physical facilities, equipment, programs, and the work to be performed;
- D. To determine the Engineer's Department goals, objectives, programs and services, and to utilize internal personnel in a manner designed to effectively meet these purposes;
- E. To determine the size, composition, and duties of the work force, the number of shifts required, to establish work schedules, to establish hours of work, to establish, modify, consolidate, or abolish jobs (or classifications); and to determine staffing patterns, including, but not limited to the assignment of employees, duties to be performed, qualifications required, and areas worked;
- F. To relieve employees from duty due to the lack of work, lack of funds, or for other reasons which would improve the economy or efficiency of the department;
- G. To determine when a job vacancy exists, the standards of quality and performance to be maintained;
- H. To determine the necessity to schedule overtime and the amount required thereof;
- I. To maintain the security of records and other pertinent information;
- J. To determine the overall budget;
- K. To maintain and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of Employer's operation; and
- L. To determine and implement necessary actions in emergency situations.

<u>Section 5.2.</u> The Union recognizes and accepts that all rights and responsibilities of the Employer not expressly restricted or modified herein and as permitted by applicable law shall remain the function of the Employer.

ARTICLE 6 NO STRIKE / NO LOCKOUT

<u>Section 6.1.</u> The Employer and the Union realize that a strike would create a clear and present danger to the health and safety of the public and that the Agreement provides machinery for the orderly resolution of grievances. The parties, therefore, agree to the following:

- A. The Union agrees that the local Union will, within two (2) weeks of the date of the signing of this Agreement, serve upon the Employer a written notice, which will list the Union's authorized representative who will deal with the Employer and make commitments for the Union
- B. The Union further agrees that neither it, its officers, agents, representatives, or members will authorize, instigate, cause, aid, condone or participate in any strike, sympathy strike, work stoppage, or any other concerted activities which interrupt the operations or services of the Employer by its members during the life of this Agreement.
- C. In all cases of strike, sympathy strike, slowdown, walkout or any unauthorized cessation of work in violation of this Agreement, the Union shall be liable for damages resulting from such unauthorized acts of its members. While the Union shall undertake every reasonable means to induce such employees to return to their jobs during any such period of unauthorized stoppage of work mentioned above, it is specifically understood and agreed that the Employer shall have sole and complete right to immediately discipline or discharge any Union member participating in any unauthorized strike, sympathy strike, slowdown, walkout, or any other cessation of work. Bargaining unit members shall have the right to appeal through provisions of this Agreement for disciplinary actions taken by the Employer under this section.

<u>Section 6.2.</u> The Employer agrees that neither it, its officers, agents, or representatives individually or collectively, will authorize, instigate, cause, aid or condone any lockout of members of the Union, unless those members shall have violated Section 1 (B) of this Article.

<u>Section 6.3.</u> Nothing in this Article shall be constructed to limit or abridge the Employer's right to seek other available remedies provided by law to deal with any unauthorized or unlawful strikes.

ARTICLE 7 PLEDGE AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION

<u>Section 7.1.</u> Neither the Employer nor the Union shall discriminate against any employee on the basis of age, sex, race, color, creed, religious belief, national origin, sexual preference, or disability as defined under the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The Union shall share equally with the Employer the responsibility for applying this Article of the Agreement.

<u>Section 7.2.</u> All references to employees in this Agreement designate both sexes, and wherever the male gender is used it shall be construed to include male and female employees.

Section 7.3. Where there is an alleged violation of the provisions of this Article that qualifies for appeal under the rules of the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or the Ohio Civil Rights Commission, such matter shall not be appealable through the grievance procedure contained in this Agreement. The Employer, the employee and their representatives may meet in an effort to resolve the alleged violation prior to the appeal to either of these agencies.

<u>Section 7.4.</u> The Employer agrees not to interfere with the rights of bargaining unit employees to become members of the Union, and the Employer shall not discriminate, interfere, restrain or coerce any employee because of union membership or because of any legal employee activity in an official capacity on behalf of the Union, as long as that activity does not conflict with the terms of this Agreement.

Section 7.5. The Union agrees not to interfere with the rights of employees to refrain or resign from membership in the Union and the Union shall not discriminate, interfere, restrain, or coerce any employee exercising the right to abstain from membership in the Union or involvement in Union activities.

<u>Section 7.6.</u> The Employer and the Union agree that employees shall not suffer sexual harassment at the workplace. The Union can submit a complaint directly to Step 2 of the grievance procedure. Such harassment may be considered a violation of the 1964 Civil Rights Act. Sexual harassment is defined as, but not limited to, including unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

- A. Submission to the conduct is either an explicit or implicit term or condition of employment;
- B. Submission to, rejection of, the conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting the person who did the submission or rejection;
- C. Such conduct has the purpose of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment.

Sexual harassment is not a consenting relationship between adults.

ARTICLE 8 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Section 8.1. No employee shall be reduced in pay, suspended or discharged except for just cause.

Section 8.2.

- A. Except in instances where the employee is found guilty of gross misconduct, discipline will normally be applied in a corrective, progressive and uniform manner, for related violations.
- B. Progressive discipline shall take into account the nature of the violation, the employee's record of discipline and the employee's record of performance and conduct.
- C. The Employer agrees not to discharge or suspend without pay an employee without first arranging for a pre-disciplinary conference. The conference shall be scheduled no earlier than 72 hours after the time the employee is notified of the charges and the conference. The hearing shall be conducted by a neutral party and the charged employee may have his Union representatives present. Such a conference must be conducted within a reasonable time from the date in which the Employer gains knowledge of those incidents which it deems to be a violation of conduct. The Union shall be notified through its President or designee that charges have been brought against the employee. An Employee may request and have present, his Union Steward or the Local Union President during the investigation of any alleged incident which may lead to the Employee's suspension or discharge.

The employee shall be notified in writing of the findings of the pre-disciplinary conference within five (5) days. Copy shall be submitted to the Union President. If, as a result of the pre-disciplinary conference, any discipline is warranted, the employee shall be notified in writing of the disciplinary action within five (5) days of receipt of the neutral party's report. Copy shall be submitted to the Union President.

An employee may waive his right to a hearing by submitting a signed written waiver to the Employer and the Union.

D. Appeals from either discharge or suspension must be submitted to the Employer in the form of a grievance within ten (10) calendar days of the date of notification, at Step 2 of the grievance procedure.

Section 8.3. Records of suspensions shall cease to have force and effect or be considered in future discipline matters twentyfour (24) months after their effective date, providing there are no intervening disciplinary actions taken during that time period. Verbal reprimands shall be on record for twelve (12) months only, providing there are no intervening disciplinary actions taken during that time period. Written reprimands shall be on record for eighteen (18) months only, providing there are no intervening disciplinary actions taken during that time period. At the request of the employee the Engineer agrees to remove outdated material from the employee's personnel file as stated above. Any disciplinary records removed from an employee's personnel file shall be maintained by the Employer consistent with its Records Retention Schedule governing the destruction of public records.

<u>Section 8.4.</u> The Employer agrees that all disciplinary procedures shall be carried out in private and in a businesslike manner.

<u>Section 8.5.</u> The Employer will make available to the Union, copies of all suspensions, discharges, and predisciplinary hearing reports.

ARTICLE 9 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

<u>Section 9.1.</u> The term "grievance" shall mean an allegation by a bargaining unit employee and/or the Union that there has been a breach, misinterpretation, or improper application of this Agreement. It is not intended that the grievance procedure be used to effect changes in the Articles of this Agreement nor those matters not covered by this Agreement. Newly hired probationary employees shall not be permitted access to this grievance procedure for any disciplinary, layoff or discharge action taken by the Employer during their probationary period.

Section 9.2. All grievances must be processed at the proper step in order to be considered at subsequent steps. The Union may withdraw a grievance at any point by submitting in writing a statement to that effect, or by permitting the time requirements at each step to lapse without further appeal. In the event any grievance which is not appealed by the Union within the time limit provided, and an extension has not been agreed to, or the grievance is withdrawn, the grievance shall be considered resolved based upon management's last answer, but shall not be considered setting a precedent for future similar cases. If answer is not given by management to a written grievance within the time limits provided and an extension has not been agreed to, the grievance shall be considered as granted, it shall not be considered as setting precedent for future similar cases. At any step in the grievance procedure, the time limit for appeal and answer may be extended in writing by mutual agreement of the parties.

Section 9.3. It is the mutual desire of the Employer and the Union to provide for prompt adjustment of grievances, with a minimum amount of interruption of the work schedules. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the Employer and the Union to effect a fair and equitable resolution of grievances at the earliest step of the procedure possible. In furtherance of this objective, the following procedure shall be followed:

In order for an alleged grievance to receive consideration under this procedure the Union must submit the alleged grievance in writing to the grievant's supervisor within ten (10) working days of the occurrence that gave rise to the grievance or within ten (10) working days of when the employee should have known of the incident giving rise to the grievance. The supervisor shall have five (5) working days following receipt of the written grievance in which to reply in writing to the grievant.

Step 2:

In the event the grievance is not resolved in Step 1, the grievant and the Union with the appropriate steward, may refer the grievance to the Engineer (or his designee) within five (5) working days after receiving the Step 1 reply. The Engineer (or his designee) shall have five (5) working days in which to schedule a meeting with the grieved employee, the Union President, the Steward that filed the grievance and AFSCME Ohio Council 8 Staff Representative. The Engineer (or his designee) shall respond in writing within fifteen (15) days of the Step 2 hearing.

Mediation Upon mutual agreement of the parties, within seven (7) calendar days of the receipt of the Step 2 decision, either party may refer the grievance to mediation by giving written notice and a request for a mediator to the Engineer and the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) or the State Employment Relations Board (SERB). The mediator shall meet with both parties and their representatives to attempt to reach a settlement. Any settlement reached shall be reduced to writing and shall be binding upon the parties. Any costs for the mediator shall be borne by the party requesting mediation. Upon receipt of written notice, pursuant to this Step, the time limits for the grievance procedure shall be suspended until (1) mediation is concluded; or (2) either party rejects or rescinds, in writing, its participation in mediation; whichever occurs first

Any grievance which has not been satisfactorily settled in the grievance procedure may be submitted by the Union to arbitration for final and binding disposition in accordance with Article 10 of this agreement.

Section 9.4. All grievances must contain the following information to be considered.

- A. Grieved employee's name and signature.
- B. Grieved employee's classification.
- C. Date grievance was first discussed and name supervisor with whom the grievance was discussed.
- D. Date grievance was filed in writing.
- E. Date and time grievance occurred.
- F. The location where the grievance occurred.
- G. A description of the incidence giving rise to the grievance.
- H. Specific articles and sections of the Agreement violated.
- I. Desired remedy to resolve the grievance.

Section 9.5. Any grievance may be brought by an employee covered by this Agreement or the Union. Any grievance brought by the Union must be signed by an employee who is employed within one of the classifications of the certified bargaining unit. Where a group of bargaining employees desire to file a grievance involving an incident affecting several employees in the same manner, one employee shall be selected by the group to process the grievance.

<u>Section 9.6.</u> Grievances bearing on the interests of a number of employees, shall be reduced to writing on the grievance form and may be introduced at Step 2 of the grievance procedure.

<u>Section 9.7.</u> For purposes of this article, work days shall be defined as Monday through Friday of each week, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays or holidays.

Section 9.8. The Employer shall provide the Union with a list of management's designated representatives for each step of the grievance procedure.

Section 9.9. This grievance procedure set forth in this agreement shall be the exclusive method of reviewing and settling grievances between the parties, and all arbitration and pre arbitration settlements reached by the parties consistent with this procedure shall be binding on the employees, the Union and the Employer.

Section 9.10. The Union shall be permitted to have an authorized Union Steward and the Union President at any grievance hearing.

Section 9.11. For grievance hearings scheduled during the grievant's regular scheduled hours of work, the grievant(s) and one (1) representative as per Article 4, Section 4.2 shall not suffer a loss in pay for straight time hours spent in such hearings. For grievance hearings at the second step, scheduled during the grievant's regularly scheduled hours of work, the grievant(s) and a maximum of two (2) representatives as per Article 4, Section 4.2 and shall not suffer a loss in pay for straight time hours spent in such hearings.

<u>Section 9.12.</u> Grievances may be withdrawn without prejudice by the Union at any time.

ARTICLE 10 ARBITRATION

<u>Section 10.1.</u> Any grievance which has not been satisfactorily settled in the grievance procedure may be submitted by the Union to arbitration for final and binding disposition.

Section 10.2. If the Union appeals a grievance to arbitration, arbitration proceedings shall be initiated within twentyfive (25) working days from the date the written response is received by the Union at Step 2 in the grievance procedure. The arbitrator shall be chosen in accordance with the rules of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The Union shall request a panel of arbitrators within twenty (20) working days of giving notice of appeal to the Employer.

<u>Section 10.3.</u> In the event the grievance is not referred to arbitration and proceedings initiated within the time limits prescribed, the grievance shall be considered resolved based upon the second step reply and the Union specifically waives any right to process the grievance to arbitration.

Section 10.4. Upon receipt of the list of seven (7) arbitrators, the parties shall meet to select an arbitrator within ten (10) calendar days from the date the list is received. The parties shall use the alternate strike method from the list of seven (7) arbitrators submitted to the parties by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The party requesting the arbitration shall be the first to strike a name from the list, then the other party shall strike a name and alternate in this manner until one name remains on the list. The remaining name shall be designated as the arbitrator to hear the dispute in question. All procedures relative to the hearing shall be in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The parties shall attempt to agree on a submission agreement outlining the specific issues to be determined by the arbitrator.

Section 10.5. The question of arbitrability of a grievance may be raised by either party before the arbitration hearing of the grievance, on the grounds that the matter is nonarbitrable or beyond the arbitrators jurisdiction. The first question to be placed before the arbitrator will be whether or not the alleged grievance is arbitrable. If the arbitrator determines the grievance is within the purview of arbitrability, the alleged grievance will be heard on its merits before the same arbitrator.

Section 10.6. The arbitrator shall expressly confine himself to the precise issues submitted for review and shall have no authority to determine any other issues not so submitted to him or to submit observations or declarations of opinion which are not directly essential in reaching his determination. The proceedings shall be as informal as is compatible with the requirements of justice, and the arbitrator need not be bound by the common law or statutory rules of evidence and procedure, but may make inquiry in the matter through oral testimony and records presented at the hearing, which is best calculated to ascertain substantial rights of the parties and to carry out justly the spirit and provisions of this Agreement.

<u>Section 10.7.</u> The filing fees and costs of the arbitration shall be borne by the losing party. Each party shall fully bear its own costs regarding preparation necessary to attend the presentation of the arbitration hearing.

Section 10.8. The arbitrator shall, within thirty (30) calendar days following the hearing, issue an award. The arbitrator shall not have jurisdiction or authority to:

- 1. review provisions of new contract;
- 2. nullify, in whole or in part, any provision of this Agreement;
- 3. add to, detract from or alter in any way, provisions of this Agreement;
- 4. all provisions of the arbitration shall be consistent with his jurisdiction, power and authority, as set forth herein, and shall be final, conclusive and binding on the parties.

<u>Section 10.9.</u> For the purposes of this article, work days shall be defined as Monday through Friday of each week, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays or holidays.

Section 10.10. The time limits established herein may be extended in writing by mutual agreement of the parties.

Section 10.11. The grievant(s) and the Local Union President, and the Steward that filed the grievance shall be permitted to attend arbitration hearings without loss of straighttime pay. All other witnesses requested by the Union shall be granted time off without pay but shall suffer no other loss of benefits. Nonpaid union witnesses may request and be granted personal time or vacation to offset any loss of pay.

Section 10.12. Employee witnesses requested by the employer will be granted time off with pay.

ARTICLE 11 BARGAINING UNIT APPLICATION TO CIVIL SERVICE LAW

<u>Section 11.1.</u> No section of the Civil Service laws contained in Ohio Revised Code, Chapter 124 shall apply to employees in the bargaining unit, and it is expressly understood that the Ohio Department of Administrative Services and the State Personnel Board of Review shall have no authority or jurisdiction as it relates to employees in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 12 LABOR MANAGEMENT MEETINGS

<u>Section 12.1.</u> The Employer and/or his representatives may meet quarterly with up to three (3) representatives of the Union to discuss matters of mutual concern.

Section 12.2. The Union shall submit to the Employer an agenda with a list of issues the Union wishes to discuss and the names of the Union representatives who will be attending. The Employer shall review the agenda to determine if a meeting is necessary and, if so, notify the Union of the scheduled meeting date and any items the Employer wishes to add to the agenda.

<u>Section 12.3.</u> The purpose of such meetings shall be to:

- A. Discuss the administration of the Agreement;
- B. Notify the Union of changes made by the Employer which affect the bargaining unit employees;
- C. Discuss grievances which have not been processed beyond the final step of the Grievance Procedure when such discussions are mutually agreed to in advance by the parties;
- D. Disseminate general information of interest to the parties;
- E. Discuss ways to increase productivity and improve efficiency; and,
- F. Consider and discuss health and safety matters relating to employees.

Section 12.4. Employee Union representatives shall be released from their assigned duties to attend Labor/Management meetings.

Section 12.5. Labor/Management meetings are not to be negotiation sessions to alter or amend the basic Agreement.

ARTICLE 13 HEALTH AND SAFETY

Section 13.1. It is agreed that safety is a prime concern and responsibility of the Employer, the employees and the Union.

<u>Section 13.2.</u> The Employer agrees to provide safe working conditions, tools, equipment and working methods for his employees and correct all hazards known by the Employer or as recommended to the Employer by the Safety and Health Committee. Nothing shall imply that the Union has undertaken or assumed any portion of that responsibility.

Section 13.3. The employees and the Union accept the responsibility to maintain tools, equipment and work areas in a safe and proper manner and accept the responsibility to follow all safety rules and safe working methods of the Employer. All unsafe working conditions shall be reported by the employee to the next higher authority in charge as soon as any unsafe working conditions are known.

<u>Section 13.4.</u> The parties agree that the provisions of this Article are directed solely toward the safety and health of the individual employees. Any attempt by an employee or employees to utilize the procedures of the Article for harassment, coercion, retaliation or to achieve objectives other than health and safety, however proper those objectives might be if pursued by other means, would be abuse of this provision and contrary to the labor agreement itself.

Section 13.5. There shall be established a joint labormanagement Health and Safety Committee composed of two (2) representatives of the Employer. Employees representing the Union shall be designated by the Union which will notify the Employer of such designated representatives and/or any changes therein. The Committee shall assist, make recommendations to and cooperate with all managers and supervisors in the promotion of safety and health. The Committee will follow the principles set forth below:

- Meetings may be conducted on a quarterly basis for the sole purpose of discussing accident prevention and health and safety conditions. Meetings may be called on an emergency basis by either labor or management. Upon advance notice to the Employer, the AFSCME Ohio Council 8 Union representative may attend and participate in any meetings.
- 2) Minutes must be approved by both parties. The Employer will provide copies of minutes to committee members and minutes will also be distributed to management and employees.
- 3) Each quarter, the Committee will inspect a County garage to detect unsafe work conditions and make recommendations to the Engineer.
- 4) The Committee shall review accidents within a reasonable time to discuss their causes and prevention.
- 5) This Committee shall meet during regular working hours, and Union members shall receive the regular pay for all time spent on Committee functions.
- 6) The Committee will have access to all injury and illness records maintained by the Engineer for Worker's Compensation purposes, to records of any work place surveys or monitoring for safety or health hazards, to costs of different materials and solutions under consideration and to lists of all chemicals used or present in the work place, their chemical names or identities and appropriate safety data.

<u>Section 13.6.</u> It is intended that, consistent with the foregoing functions of the Safety and Health Committee, AFSCME Ohio Council 8 Local 3285, the Union Safety Committee and their officers, employees, and agents shall not be liable for any workconnected injuries, disabilities or diseases which may be incurred by employees.

ARTICLE 14 SENIORITY

<u>Section 14.1.</u> "Departmental Seniority" shall be computed on the basis of the last hiring date of uninterrupted length of continuous service with the Employer. A termination of employment lasting less than thirtyone (31) days shall not constitute a break in continuous service. Once continuous service is broken, unless the employee is reinstated, within thirtyone (31) days, the employee loses all previously accumulated seniority.

<u>Section 14.2.</u> An approved leave of absence does not constitute a break in continuous service provided the employee follows the proper procedure for such leave and returns to active service immediately following the expiration of the approved leave.

Section 14.3. Employees laid off shall retain their seniority for a period of eighteen (18) months from the date of layoff.

<u>Section 14.4.</u> The Employer shall post a seniority list, once every twelve (12) months, showing the continuous service of each employee. One (1) copy of the seniority list shall be furnished to the Union upon request. Any objections to this list must be presented to the Employer within ten (10) calendar days of posting or said list shall be deemed valid by all parties.

<u>Section 14.5.</u> Employees who are hired on the same day will be placed on the seniority list in alphabetical order according to their surname on their date of hire.

ARTICLE 15 PROBATIONARY PERIODS

<u>Section 15.1.</u> Every newly hired employee will be required to successfully complete a probationary period. For employees hired on or after the effective date of this agreement, the probationary period for new employees shall begin on the first day for which the employee receives compensation from the Employer and shall continue for a period of three hundred and sixty-five (365) calendar days. A newly hired probationary employee may be terminated any time during his probationary period and shall have no appeal over such removal.

Section 15.2. A newly promoted employee will be required to successfully complete a probationary period in his newly appointed position. The probationary period for a newly promoted employee shall begin on the effective date of the promotion and shall continue for a period of ninety (90) calendar days. A newly promoted employee who evidences unsatisfactory performance may be returned to his former position any time during his probationary period by the Engineer. Also, the promoted employee may return to his former position anytime during the first thirty (30) calendar days of his promotion. Employees seeking a voluntary demotion, or return to a prior position, shall only be permitted to do so pursuant to the terms of this Article, or subject to the approval of the Engineer. At the time of the voluntary demotion, or return to a prior position, the employee must be capable of performing the essential duties of their prior position and possess all appropriate certifications and/or licensing requirements of the position. The Employer may require the employee to demonstrate that they are still capable of performing the duties of the position.

Section 15.3. Employees promoted to positions outside the bargaining unit, but within the agency, shall have their seniority frozen at the level earned prior to the promotion for a period of up to six (6) months. Seniority shall be lost after six (6) months.

<u>Section 15.4.</u> Part time employees who work a portion of each normal working day shall have their probationary period determined by the number of calendar days following appointment in the same manner as full time employees. Employees who work an irregular schedule or who work less than the normal number of working days per week shall have their probationary period determined on the basis of the number of calendar days actually worked comparable to a full time employee.

<u>Section 15.5.</u> In the event an employee within the bargaining unit is awarded a position in a new classification under Article 17 other than the one he currently held, such employee will be considered a newly promoted employee under Section 15.2 and will be governed by the provisions in Section 15.2.

ARTICLE 16 LATERAL TRANSFERS

<u>Section 16.1.</u> An employee may exercise his seniority for the purpose of transferring from one work location to another work location with the same job classification, when an opening occurs, provided he has the ability and qualifications to perform the work required at the work location sought.

<u>Section 16.2.</u> To be eligible for any of the transfers, an employee must submit to the Engineer a written request for such transfer of job assignment during the posting period for the vacancy. Once an employee has been awarded a vacancy as above defined, he may not have another such transfer within a twelve (12) month period from the date of the first transfer.

Section 16.3. A Lateral Transfer shall take precedent over the promotional procedure outlined in Article 17.

Section 16.4. In the event an employee requests a lateral transfer under Article 16 after a job opening is posted under Article 17, any subsequent openings which result due to the granting of the lateral transfer will have a posting period of five (5) working days until the opening is finally filled.

ARTICLE 17 POSTING OF JOB OPENINGS

<u>Section 17.1.</u> The parties agree that all appointments to positions covered by this Agreement, other than the original appointments from eligible list shall be filled in accordance with this Article.

Section 17.2. Whenever the Employer determines that a permanent vacancy exists and such vacancy is to be filled, a notice of such vacancy shall be posted on the employee's bulletin board for five (5) working days. During the posting period, anyone wishing to apply for the vacant position shall do so by submitting a written application to the Employer. Such application shall be provided by the Employer. The Employer shall not be obligated to consider any applications submitted after the posted date or who do not meet the minimum qualifications for the job.

Section 17.3. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit or prevent the Employer from temporarily filling a vacant position, up to thirty (30) calendar days, at the discretion of the Employer, pending the Employer's determination to fill the vacancy on a permanent basis.

Section 17.4. All timelyfiled applications shall be reviewed considering the following criteria: qualifications, experience, education, work record, previous job performance, disciplinary record, physical capability. Physical ability is used as a qualifier to determine whether or not an employee can bid on a position. This does not mean that the Employer shall not consider a disabled individual (as defined by ADA) who can with reasonable accommodation perform said job. Where more than one applicant is deemed qualified and where qualifications of those applicants are relatively equal, then the appointment will be made on department seniority.

Section 17.5. Once the determination has been made, the Employer agrees to post the selection, if any, within five (5) working days. The Employer shall fill any such vacancy within ten (10) working days after posting the selection. Such posting shall include the names of all bidders and shall be posted in all County garages. The Employer may cancel a job posting at any time prior to the time it posts the name of the successful bidder.

<u>Section 17.6.</u> Bids shall be submitted to the Engineer's designee on a form to be provided by the Employer, consisting of three (3) copies. Two copies are for the use of the employee, one copy may be submitted by the employee to the Union, and one copy shall be retained by the employee. The Employer's copy shall be kept confidential until the job posting expires.

<u>Section 17.7.</u> An employee who desires to be considered for vacancies covered under this article, which becomes available during the employee's vacation or leave of absence, shall notify the Employer of his desire in writing before he leaves for vacation or leave of absence.

<u>Section 17.8.</u> The Employer shall provide training to all employees who wish to become qualified in various job duties of higherrated classifications in order of seniority as opportunities arise.

<u>Section 17.9.</u> Should the Employer determine that informal on the job training as provided in Section 17.8 is not producing a sufficient number of employees qualified and available for temporary and/or permanent assignment to a job, the following training procedure will be initiated:

A. A training opportunity will be posted for ten (10) working days.

B. Based on greatest departmental seniority, the senior bidder in the next lower job class will be trained.

C. If no employees have bid, then the employee in the department with the least departmental seniority working in the road or bridge department will be assigned to the training vacancy, or the job may be rebid at the Employer's discretion.

<u>Section 17.10.</u> In order that employees may be trained and qualified for promotion the following procedures shall be used and applied in all instances of training as outlined in Section 17.9 above.

- (A) No later than thirty (30) days from the signing of this Agreement, a joint Labor/Management Committee, consisting of two (2) bargaining unit employees from the appropriate classifications, two (2) supervisors from the appropriate department involved and the Engineer's designee, and one (1) local Union Representative shall be formed for the purpose of evaluating individual performance in each training period. This committee shall be charged with recording the amount of time on each training period, determining areas of deficiencies, recommending remedial training in those areas of deficiency and recommending to the Engineer when a candidate is considered to be qualified, based upon the criteria outlined below.
 - The committee shall review the list of employees requesting training. An employee who is awarded a training opportunity bid shall be notified within thirty (30) days of the initial request when the training will start. The length of the training period shall be determined by the committee
- (B) The Committee as outlined in (A) above, shall determine the appropriate time period necessary to qualify for the Bridge Worker II and Operator I and II Classifications. Each trainee shall be obligated to fulfill the time frames as determined by the Committee and shall not be considered qualified until such time as the applicable training period has been completed and/or the Committee certifies such qualifications to the Engineer.
- (C) An employee in a training opportunity shall be evaluated by the Committee on a biweekly basis and a written progress report shall be given to the employee and the Union. Such report shall contain the number of hours in training for the period, the nature of any specific training (e.g. which machines were operated; skills, (i.e. welding, painting, etc.) and any recommendation of the Committee.
- (D) For the purposes of this Article, all time spent either working out of classification, or in an actual training situation, formal or informal, shall be considered as hours in the instances of working above classification, toward qualification as outlined in subsection (B) above, except that, only hours actually operating a machine shall be counted as qualifying time.
- An employee in a training opportunity shall be compensated in accordance with historical practices for informal training; in accordance with the provisions of this agreement when working out of classification and in the circumstances of a formal training opportunity, except in situations of "Double Manning", (i.e. an operator in attendance while the trainee is performing the function of operating the machinery.) at onehalf (50%) of the difference in pay rate between the employee's normal classifications and the classification for which he is being trained so long as this does not result in a loss of pay for the employee. (i.e. a Highway Worker II (\$11.90) is in a formal training opportunity for Operator I (\$12.35) the HW II would be compensated at the rate of \$12.13 per hour (e.g. \$11.90 \$12.35 = .45/2 = .23 + \$11.90 = \$12.13). This "training rate" should apply for those hours actually involved in the operation of the equipment.
- (F) An employee shall be considered qualified, by the Employer, for a position when, in the Committee's evaluation, confirmed by the Engineer, he can perform the function of the position which no more supervision than is normally necessary for any other employee in the classification, and when the employee has met the time obligation outlined above in Section (B).
- (G) The committee shall meet quarterly to discuss upcoming training opportunities and any other matter pertaining to ongoing training as defined in this Article
- (H) When a permanent vacancy exists in any other classification other than those classifications listed above (e.g. Welder, Auto Mechanic, Auto Body Repair, etc.) a candidate shall be considered for promotion based upon experience, known skills, qualifications or demonstration of necessary skills of any documentation presented to the Employer to demonstrate those factors. All time spent working on these classifications prior to the promotional opportunity shall be documented and counted as training as outlined in Section (B) through (D) above. When the requirements outlined above are met, employees shall be promoted on a trial basis to the posted position and compensated at the rate of pay for such position, most senior qualified employee first. The employee shall be given a trial period of sixty (60) days in which to demonstrate their ability to perform the function of the position and shall be considered qualified for the position when he/she can perform the functions of the position with no more supervision than is normally necessary for other employees of equal experience with the classification.

ARTICLE 18 TEMPORARY VACANCIES

<u>Section 18.1.</u> Employees temporarily transferred to a higher hourly rated job shall be paid at the higher rate for the entire shift in which the employee performed the higher rated job.

<u>Section 18.2.</u> Day to day temporary vacancies occurring within the garage shall be filled by offering the position to the senior qualified employee in a lower job class and assigned to the garage where the vacancy exists. In the event the senior qualified employee, and less senior qualified employees assigned to the garage where the temporary vacancy exists, waive the opportunity to fill such temporary vacancy, the least senior qualified employee in the garage where the vacancy exists, must accept the temporary vacancy.

Section 18.3. Temporary vacancies of more than one day and which are known to exist prior to the scheduling of the work force shall be filled by offering the position to the senior qualified employee in a lower job class, and successively less senior qualified employees in lower job classes assigned to the garage where the temporary vacancy exists. In the event the senior qualified employee and successively less senior qualified employees assigned to the garage where the temporary vacancy exists waive the opportunity to fill such vacancy, the least senior qualified employee assigned to the garage where the vacancy exists must accept the temporary vacancy.

Section 18.4. For purposes of this article, excluding Highway Worker II operating front end loader to load cinders in trucks, a Bridge Worker I and/or Highway Worker II shall be considered to be performing a higher rated job when towing a trailer, operating a winch truck to load ties, and a backhoe and front end loader to dig and move dirt, stone or the like. A Highway Worker II shall be considered to be performing a higher rated job when he operates a front end loader to clean ditches and when he operates a roller to roll road materials on county highways.

Section 18.5 Flagging Supervisors will assign flagging to the least senior employee(s) if more senior employee(s) do not volunteer.

ARTICLE 19 LAYOFF AND RECALL

<u>Section 19.1.</u> When the Employer determines that a long term layoff or job abolishment is necessary, the Employer shall notify the affected employees five (5) calendar days in advance of the effective date of the layoff or job abolishment. Employees will be notified of the Employer's decision to implement any short term layoff, lasting seventytwo (72) hours or less, as soon as possible. The Employer, upon request from the Union, agrees to discuss, with representatives of the Union, the impact of the layoff on bargaining unit employees.

Section 19.2. The Employer shall determine in which classification(s) and which work location(s) layoffs will occur. Within each classification affected, employees will be laid off in accordance with their department seniority and their ability to perform the remaining work available without further training. When two or more employees have relatively equal experience, skill, ability and qualifications to do the work without further training, the employee(s) with the least seniority will be laid off first.

- A. Management shall give the affected employees five (5) calendar days written notice of their layoff indicating their right to bump employees with the same rate of pay or then, in the next lower paid classification if any, within the Bargaining Unit for which they are qualified and immediately capable of performing the available work.
- B. The affected employees shall have three (3) calendar days in which to submit their written request to exercise their right to bump into any other position for which they are eligible and qualified. Any employee not submitting such request within three (3) days shall be considered to have accepted the layoff.

<u>Section 19.3.</u> Employees who are laid off shall be placed on a recall list for a period of eighteen (18) months. If there is a recall, employees who are still on the recall list shall be recalled, in the inverse order of their layoff, provided they are presently qualified to perform the work in the job classification to which they are recalled without further training.

<u>Section 19.4.</u> Notice of recall from a long term layoff shall be sent to the employee by certified or registered mail with a copy to the Union. The Employer shall be deemed to have fulfilled its obligations by mailing the recall notice by registered mail, return receipt requested, to the last mailing address provided.

Section 19.5. In the case of long term layoff, the recalled employee shall have five (5) calendar days following the date of mailing of the recall notice to notify the Employer of his intention to return to work and shall have ten (10) calendar days following the mailing date of the recall notice in which to report for duty, unless a different date for returning to work is otherwise specified in the notice.

<u>Section 19.6.</u> The Employer agrees there will be no new hires in any classification where there is a recall list.

ARTICLE 20 BARGAINING UNIT WORK

<u>Section 20.1.</u> Supervisors shall not perform work normally performed by bargaining unit employees that would result in the lay-off or a two (2) hour or more displacement of bargaining unit employees. Furthermore, in overtime incidents, supervisors shall not perform bargaining unit work except in emergency situations requiring only the attention of the supervisor.

Section 20.2 Upon request, the Employer shall provide any/all job description(s) for positions within the bargaining unit. The Employer may review, revise and/or modify any/all job description(s) within the bargaining unit. If the Employer revises and/or modifies an existing job description, it will provide copies of the job description(s) to the Union President two (2) weeks prior to the effective date of the revised or modified job description. Upon request, the Employer shall meet with the Union for the purpose of discussing any/all revised or modified job description(s).

ARTICLE 21 CALLIN PAY

<u>Section 21.1.</u> An employee who is called into work and who reports for work during hours outside his regularly scheduled shift which hours will not abut his regularly scheduled shift hours, shall receive two (2) hours pay at the appropriate rate for such work performed. Only hours actually worked (with a minimum of 2 hours) under this section will be included in determining hours worked for overtime purposes.

In the event an employee is called-in to work during hours outside their shift and is required to actually work two (2) hours or more (the minimum call-in pay above) or hours that abut the employee's regularly scheduled shift, the employee's start time shall begin thirty (30) minutes prior to the time that the supervisor is notified of the employee's arrival. Employees are expected to promptly arrive to work following the call-in.

ARTICLE 22 PAY PERIODS & PAYCHECKS

<u>Section 22.1.</u> There will normally be twentysix pay periods of each calendar year. The Engineer agrees to distribute paychecks in a sealed envelope on Friday by the regular schedule. In the event of emergency conditions, the Engineer agrees to arrange the distribution of paychecks in a manner that is quick, efficient and equitable.

ARTICLE 23 WASHUP TIME

<u>Section 23.1.</u> Employees shall be permitted a reasonable time, not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes at the end of each work day before quitting time for washup. Washup time shall be utilized for personal cleanup and shall not be considered free time which the employee can use for other purposes. Washup time is not accumulative and will only be allowed when the work schedule permits.

ARTICLE 24 BULLETIN BOARDS

<u>Section 24.1.</u> The Engineer agrees to allow space on the bulletin boards now existing at the Courthouse, Roscoe garage, Lloydsville, Tacoma and Neffs locations for the use of the Union. The Engineer will permit the Union use of said bulletin boards, however the Engineer shall not be obligated to purchase bulletin boards for the Union's use.

<u>Section 24.2.</u> All Union notices which appear on the bulletin boards shall be posted and removed by the highest ranking Union official in the bargaining unit during nonwork time and shall relate to items of interest to the members. Union notices relating to the following matters may be posted without the necessity of receiving the Engineer's prior approval:

- A. union recreational and social affairs;
- B. notice of Union meetings;
- C. Union appointments;
- D. notice of Union elections;
- E. results of Union elections;
- F. reports of nonpolitical standing committees and independent nonpolitical arms of the Union; and,
- G. publications, rulings of policies of the Union.

All other notices of any kind not covered in A through G above must receive prior approval from the Engineer or his designee. It is also understood that no material may be posted on the bulletin boards at any time which contain the following:

- H. personal attacks upon any other member or any other employee;
- I. attacks on any employee organization, regardless of whether the organization has local membership; and
- J. attacks on and/or favorable comments regarding a candidate for public office or Union office, or for office in another employee organization.

ARTICLE 25 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Section 25.1. This Article is intended to define the normal hours of work per day or per week in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as preventing the Employer from restructuring the normal work day or work week for the purpose of promoting efficiency or improving services; from establishing the work schedules of employees; or establishing parttime positions. This Article is intended to be used as a basis for computing overtime and shall not be construed as a guarantee of work per day or per week.

Section 25.2. The normal work week for courthouse employees covered by this Agreement shall be thirtyfive (35) hours, exclusive of a one (1) hour lunch period, and for road and bridge employees forty (40) hours, exclusive of a onehalf (1/2) hour lunch period. The work week shall be computed between 12:01 A.M. on Sunday of each calendar week and 12 o'clock midnight the following Saturday. Employees who work thirtyfive (35) or more hours in their normal workweek shall be considered fulltime employees for the purpose of this Agreement. The normal work day shall commence at 7:00 A.M. and end at 3:30 P.M. for the road and bridge crew and commence at 8:30 A.M. and end at 4:30 P.M. for the courthouse employees. The Employer shall give thirty (30) days notification to the Union prior to changing the normal work day and shall meet with the Union to discuss such changes unless circumstances beyond the Employer's control prevent such notification.

Section 25.3. When an employee is required by the Employer to be in active pay status more than forty (40) hours in a calendar week, as defined in Section 25.2 above or more than eight (8) hours in any twentyfour (24) hour period, he shall be paid overtime pay for such time over forty (40) hours or over eight (8) hours at one and onehalf (11/2) times his regular rate of pay. Compensation shall not be paid more than once for the same hours (pyramiding) under any provision of this Article or Agreement.

Section 25.4. Emergency overtime call out. Emergencies occurring between the hours of 3:30 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. requiring the employer's immediate attention, such as inclement weather, snow and ice control, floods and other conditions which in the Employer's judgment jeopardize public safety, affect the employer's operation, or are considered public hazards by the employer, and such emergency requires calling out employees for overtime work, such overtime will be distributed to employees normally assigned to perform such work, and who are assigned to the county garage nearest the emergency.

After the above-procedure has been followed and additional employees are needed for the overtime work, employees of the bridge crew who are qualified by job description to perform the work, and qualified employees who have signed the overtime volunteer list will be called in order of

their seniority by rotation. Employees on sick leave or vacation on the day of the emergency overtime call out and who perform the overtime work shall be paid at the overtime rate in addition to sick leave or vacation taken.

A. In the event an insufficient number of employees from the above procedure are not available for the overtime work, the least senior employee(s) within the classification must accept the overtime as mandatory overtime.

<u>Section 25.5.</u> <u>Incidental overtime-Continuation of work shift.</u> Incidental overtime opportunities shall be assigned to the needed employees who have signed the overtime volunteer list and who are working at the site and on the crew where the overtime need exists. In the event no employees at the site and on the crew where the overtime need exists have signed the overtime volunteer list, the least senior qualified employee must accept the overtime.

Section 25.6. Voluntary Overtime List. Every three (3) months consistent with Article 41, employees may sign a list indicating a willingness to work overtime. Signing the list shall make an employee eligible for overtime calls as outlined in this paragraph. Employees who do not sign the voluntary overtime list shall not be placed on an overtime list and shall not be called out to perform overtime work. Employees called from such voluntary overtime list shall be placed at the bottom of such list and rotated until all employees on the list have had an opportunity for overtime work

Section 25.7. Rest period. There shall be two (2) fifteen (15) minute paid rest periods in each regular shift each work day. Such rest periods shall be scheduled whenever practicable approximately midpoint in the first (1st) one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) of the employee's regular work shift, and in the second (2nd) one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) of the shift. Rest periods shall be taken at such time and in such manner the does not interfere with the efficiency or productivity of the work unit. Rest periods are intended to be a recess to be preceded and followed by an extended work period; therefore, it shall not be used to cover an employee's late arrival to work or early departure, nor shall it be accumulative if not taken.

<u>Section 25.8. Meal allowance.</u> At the completion of the tenth (10th) consecutive hour of work an employee will be eligible for a meal allowance as follows: effective May 1, 2017, nine dollars (\$9.00)-and shall receive a (30) minute unpaid meal break.

Section 25.9 Afternoon Shifts With thirty days advance notice, the Employer may establish an afternoon shift. Generally, the afternoon shift shall be Monday through Friday from 3:30 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. (midnight) during the winter season. Employees scheduled to work the afternoon shift shall receive a shift differential of \$2.00/hr. for all hours actually worked during the hours of their scheduled afternoon shift, 3:30 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. (midnight). Employees will not be eligible to receive a shift differential if they are not scheduled to work and do not actually work during the hours of 3:30 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. (midnight). Employees scheduled to work the afternoon shift shall receive the \$2.00/hr shift differential for all hours worked abutting 3:30 p.m. to 12:00 a.m., the hours of the afternoon shift, at the appropriate rate. Employees called-in to work outside their regularly scheduled call-in period shall not be eligible for the shift differential.

Each employee in the appropriate classification from each garage will be required to work at least 1 two-week period on the afternoon shift. At the time the Employer provides thirty (30) days' notice of the start of the afternoon shift, a calendar shall be posted in each garage for bargaining unit employees to sign up. Employees in each garage shall be permitted to sign up for their two-week period based upon seniority with the most senior person selecting first.

If, after each employee in each garage signs up for at least 1 two-week period, additional two-week periods remain unfilled, the Employer shall request volunteers based upon seniority for the remaining two-week shifts. If no one volunteers, the least senior employees in each garage will be required to work the remaining two-week shifts.

Employees will not be eligible or required to work afternoon shifts until they have worked thirty (30) calendar days for the Employer.

Employees will now be eligible to volunteer for additional afternoon shifts, providing an employee volunteers to forfeit their two-week period. If an employee wishes to forfeit their shift, the vacant afternoon shift will be replaced by seniority. Afternoon shifts will be divided by employees wishing to work afternoon shift. And will be eligible for the shift differential. Each employee in the appropriate classification from each garage will be required to work at least 1 two-week period on the afternoon shift. If no one volunteers, any bargaining unit employee may request to work the remaining two-week shift at each assigned garage.

ARTICLE 26 LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Section 26.1. Leave Without Pay. Employees may be granted the following types of unpaid leaves of absence:

- A. <u>Disability Leave:</u> A physically incapacitated employee may request a disability leave. A disability leave may be granted up to six (6) months, when the disability continues beyond accumulated sick leave rights and provided the employee is:
 - 1. hospitalized or institutionalized;
 - 2. on a period of convalescence following hospitalization or institutionalization authorized by a physician at the hospital or institution; or,
 - 3. is declared incapacitated for the performance of the duties of his position by a licensed physician.

It is the employee's responsibility to request a disability leave and such leave is not granted automatically when the employee's sick leave is expired.

B. <u>Personal Leave</u>. The Employer may grant a leave of absence to any employee for a maximum duration of one (1) month for any personal reasons of the employee. Such a leave may not be renewed or extended beyond one (1) month.

<u>Section 26.2.</u> <u>Authorization for Leave.</u> The authorization of a leave of absence without pay is a matter of administrative discretion. The Employer shall decide in each individual case if a leave of absence is to be granted. No leave of absence shall be granted for the purpose of working another job. A leave of absence shall be requested on the standard Request for Leave form.

Section 26.3. Sick Leave Credit and Vacation Credit During Leave. An employee on leave of absence without pay does not earn sick leave or earn vacation.

<u>Section 26.4.</u> Abuse of Leave. If a leave of absence is granted for specific purpose, and it is found the leave is not actually being used for such purpose, the Employer may cancel the leave and direct the employee to report for work by giving written notice to the employee.

Section 26.5. Reinstatement from Leave. Upon completion of a leave of absence, the employee shall be returned to the position formerly occupied, or to a similar position if the employee's former position no longer exists. An employee may contact the Employer prior to the expiration of said leave, and be granted a reasonable extension for a justifiable cause. An employee may be returned to work before the schedule expiration of leave if requested by the employee and agreed to by the Employer. If an employee fails to return to work immediately upon expiration of an approved leave of absence, and does not submit a resignation, the employee will be considered "absent without leave" and shall be subject to immediate termination.

Section 26.6. Military Leave. All employees who are members of the Ohio National Guard, the Ohio Defense Corps, the State and Federal Militia, or members of other Reserve components of the Armed Forces of the United States are entitled to leave of absence from their respective duties without loss of pay for such time as they are in the military service, on field training or active duty for periods not to exceed a total of thirtyone (31) calendar days in any one calendar year. The employee is required to submit to the Employer an order or statement from the appropriate military commander as evidence of such duty. Employees shall be entitled to receive both, their regular rate of pay and military pay for the purpose of complying with this Section. There is no requirement that the service be in one continuous period of time. The maximum number of hours for which payment may be made in any one calendar year under this provision shall be one hundred seventysix (176) hours.

Employees who are members of those components listed in the paragraph above will be granted emergency leave for mob, riot, flood, civil defense, or similar duties when so ordered by the Governor to assist civil authorities. Such leave will be without pay if it exceeds authorized paid military leave for the year. The leave will cover the official period of the emergency.

Section 26.7. Jury Duty. Employees shall receive full pay for regularly scheduled working hours on any day when an employee is required to appear before any court for jury duty by the United States or Ohio Courts. Any fees received by an employee for such activity shall be remitted to the Employer, unless such duty is performed totally outside scheduled working hours for such employee. It is understood that an employee released from jury duty prior to the end of his scheduled workday, shall report to work for the remaining hours after being given a reasonable time to change clothes in order to prepare for work duties.

Section 26.8. Family and Medical Leave. Employees of the Engineer Department who have attained one (1) year service and has accumulated 1,250 hours over the past twelve months prior to the date of requested leave will be granted family and medical leave of a maximum of 12 weeks unpaid for the following purposes:

- A. To care for the employee's child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care.
- B. To care for the employee's spouse, son or daughter, or parent who has a serious health condition; or
- C. For a serious health condition that results in the employee's inability to perform his/her job.

Employees requesting family and medical leave which involves serious health condition as defined in B and C above will be required to obtain medical certification from the attending physician verifying the condition and the employee's inability to work. At the employer's discretion, a second or third opinion may be required at the employer's expense for C above.

Employees shall use the appropriate accumulated paid leave, including vacation leave, personal leave and sick leave, concurrent with their Family and Medical Leave prior to being placed on unpaid status. In no event, shall such Family and Medical leave extend beyond a total of twelve (12) weeks. In order for such leave to have a minimum effect on the department's efficiency and orderly operation, an advance notice of thirty (30) days must be given unless due to unforeseeable circumstances, such notice is impossible. In the event an employee has a pre-scheduled and pre-approved vacation, but exhausts their accrued paid leave while on Family Medical Leave, the employee shall be permitted to use unpaid leave for the period of the vacation.

In the event a family medical leave is taken due to an employee's serious health problem, a fitness for duty report must be submitted to the Engineer from the employee's attending physician prior to the employee's return to work.

Employee's granted family and medical leave shall continue to be covered under the county's group health plan with the Engineer continuing to pay its share of the group health plan cost. The affected employee shall be responsible to pay for his/her share of the group health plan premium.

ARTICLE 27 SICK LEAVE

<u>Section 27.1. Crediting of Sick Leave.</u> Sick leave credit shall be earned at the rate of 4.6 hours for each eighty (80) hours of service in active pay status, including paid vacation, overtime and sick leave, but not during a leave of absence or layoff. Parttime, seasonal and intermittent workers shall be credited with sick leave at the same rate. Unused sick leave shall accumulate without limit.

<u>Section 27.2.</u> Expiration of Sick Leave. If illness or disability continues beyond the time covered by earned sick leave, the employee may be granted a disability leave or a personal leave in accordance with Article 26.1 of this Agreement.

Section 27.3. Charging of Sick Leave. Sick leave shall be charged in minimum units of one half (1/2) hour. It is understood that the operation of the department will not be reasonably disrupted in any manner as a result of Medical/Dental appointments. Employees shall attempt to schedule Medical/Dental appointments during nonworking hours. An employee shall be charged for sick leave only for days upon which he would otherwise have been scheduled to work. Sick leave payment shall not exceed the normal scheduled eight (8) hour work day or forty (40) hour work week earnings for road and bridge crews, seven (7) hours work day or thirty five (35) hour work week earnings for office employees.

Employees on paid sick leave shall be considered on active pay status and as time worked for the purpose of computing overtime.

Section 27.4. Uses of Sick Leave.

- Sick leave shall be granted to an employee upon approval of the Engineer and for the following reasons:
 - 1. illness or injury of the employee or a member of his immediate family;
 - 2. medical, dental or optical examinations or treatment of employee or a member of his immediate family, which requires the employee, and which cannot be scheduled during nonworking hours;
 - 3. if a member of the immediate family is afflicted with a contagious disease or requires the care and attendance of the employee or when, through exposure to a contagious disease, the presence of the employee at his job would jeopardize the health of others;
 - 4. pregnancy and/or childbirth and other conditions related thereto.
- B. Definition of immediate family: mother, father, brother, sister, child, spouse, grandparent, grandchild, motherinlaw, fatherinlaw, daughterinlaw, soninlaw, sisterinlaw, brotherinlaw, legal guardian, aunt, uncle, or other person who stands in place of a parent (loco parentis).

Section 27.5. Evidence Required for Sick Leave Usage. The Engineer shall require an employee to furnish a standard written signed statement explaining the nature of the illnesses to justify the use of sick leave. Falsification of either a written, signed statement or a physician's certificate shall be grounds for disciplinary action including dismissal. For any illness exceeding three (3) days a doctor's certificate shall be required.

Section 27.6. Notification by Employees. When an employee is unable to report to work, he shall notify his/her immediate supervisor or other designated person no later than onehalf (½) hour prior to the time he is scheduled to report to work on each day of absence, unless emergency conditions make it impossible.

<u>Section 27.7.</u> Abuse of Sick Leave. Employees failing to comply with sick leave rules and regulations shall not be paid and disciplinary action may be taken. Application for sick leave with intent to defraud may result in dismissal and may result in refund of salary or wages paid.

<u>Section 27.8. Physician's Statement.</u> If medical attention is required, the employee may be required to furnish a statement from a licensed physician notifying the Engineer that the employee was unable to perform his duties. Where sick leave is requested to care for a member of the immediate family, the Engineer may require a physician's certificate to the effect that the presence of the employee is necessary to care for the ill person

<u>Section 27.9. Physician's Examination.</u> The Engineer may require an employee to take an examination, conducted by a licensed physician, to determine the employee's physical or mental capability to perform the duties of the employee's position. If found not qualified, the employee may be placed on sick leave or disability leave. The cost of such examination shall be paid by the Employer.

Section 27.10. Personal Days. All employees shall be entitled to five (5) personal days per payroll year. Such personal days are nonaccumulative and, if taken, shall be subtracted from the employee's previously earned sick leave accumulation and shall be in accordance with the following conditions:

- 1. Employees applying for Personal Days must have sufficient sick leave accumulated for the number of days requested and such Personal Days shall be subtracted from the Employee's sick leave accumulation.
- 2. Personal Days shall be taken in no less than one (1) hour increments, and no more than forty (40) hours for road and bridge crew employees and thirty-five (35) hours for courthouse Employees, provided that the Employee meets the qualifications of 1 above.

Section 27.11. Employees who become injured on the job shall be paid at the rate of the job being performed at time of injury for the full eight (8) hours on the date the injury occurs, providing that the attending physician states the employee is not able to return to work on the date of injury. However, if the physician states the employee is able to return to work the employee will be paid for the time lost on the day the injury occurred at the rate the employee was performing at the time of injury.

Section 27.12. Bereavement Leave In the event of death of a member of an employee's immediate family, as defined, under Section 27.4 (B) of this Article, the employee shall be entitled to three (3) days paid leave for bereavement. Such days shall not be charged to an employee's accumulated sick leave.

ARTICLE 28 MATERNITY LEAVE

<u>Section 28.1.</u> Upon request to the Employer, which is supported by satisfactory medical evidence, an employee who becomes pregnant shall be granted maternity leave of absence without pay. If she wishes, the employee may use any or all of her accrued sick leave and vacation leave for pregnancy before going on maternity leave prior to the birth of the baby, and for the recovery period, subject to the Sick Leave Article.

<u>Section 28.2.</u> Should the maternity leave of absence without pay exceed (6) months the employee may request and be granted a disability leave. If the Employer has reason to believe the employee's pregnancy is inhibiting the usual performance of duties, he may order in writing, that the employee begin sick leave, vacation leave, or maternity leave at an earlier date than that selected by the employee.

ARTICLE 29 UNION LEAVE

<u>Section 29.1.</u> Subject to the operational needs of the Department, the Union has five (5) days per year (year defined as 1/1 to 12/31) for its members or officials to attend Union functions, meetings or conventions. Such time shall be granted to attend such functions for the Union, provided two (2) weeks advance notice is given in writing to the Employer by the local Union President. Such leave shall be without pay. However, vacation or leave without pay may be used at the employee's option.

ARTICLE 30 HOLIDAYS

Section 30.1. All employees in the bargaining unit assigned to the Belmont County Courthouse shall be entitled to the following paid holidays.

New Year's Day (1st day of January)

Martin Luther King Day
President's Day
Memorial Day

(3rd Monday of January)
(3rd Monday of February)
(Last Monday in May)

Juneteenth (19th day of June) Independence Day (4th day of July)

Labor Day (1st Monday in September)
Columbus Day (2nd Monday in October)
Veteran's Day (11th day of November)
Thanksgiving Day (4th Thursday in November)
Day after Thanksgiving (Day after Thanksgiving)
Christmas Day (25th day of December)

All employees in the bargaining unit assigned to the Belmont County Engineer's Office Garage(s) shall be entitled to the following paid holidays.

New Year's Day (1st day of January)

Martin Luther King Day
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day

(3rd Monday of January)
(3rd Monday of February)
(Last Monday in May)
(4th day of July)

Labor Day (1st Monday in September)
Columbus Day (2nd Monday in October)
Veteran's Day (11th day of November)
Thanksgiving Day (4th Thursday in November)
Day after Thanksgiving (Day after Thanksgiving)
Christmas Eve (24th day of December)
Christmas Day (25th day of December)

<u>Section 30.2.</u> In the event that any of the aforementioned holidays fall on Saturday, the Friday immediately preceding shall be observed as the holiday. In the event that any of the aforementioned holidays fall on Sunday, the Monday immediately succeeding shall be observed as the holiday.

Section 30.3. An employee who does not work on a recognized holiday shall receive their regular hours straight time pay at their regular rate of pay for the holidays observed on their day off regardless of the day of the week on which they are observed. All employees who work on a recognized holiday, except the fourth Thursday in November (Thanksgiving), December 25 and January 1, shall receive their regular hours holiday pay in addition to time and onehalf (11/2) their regular rate of pay for all hours worked on the holiday. All employees who work on the fourth Thursday in November (Thanksgiving), December 25 and January 1 shall receive their regular holiday pay in addition to double their regular rate of pay for all hours worked on the fourth Thursday in November, December 25, and/or January 1. In order to receive double time payment, the work must occur on the fourth Thursday of November (Thanksgiving), December 25 and/or January 1, not the day on which the holiday is recognized in the event it falls on a Saturday or Sunday.

<u>Section 30.4.</u> Any employee who is not in active pay status on both the scheduled day prior to and the scheduled day following a holiday shall not be paid for that holiday.

<u>Section 30.5</u> An employee's request to use paid leave on Christmas Eve and/or Juneteenth, if not a holiday due to their assignment, shall not be unreasonably denied.

ARTICLE 31 VACATIONS

<u>Section 31.1.</u> Fulltime employees of the bargaining unit are entitled to vacation with pay after one (1) year of continuous service with the Engineer. The amount of vacation leave to which an employee is entitled, is based maintaining an active pay status or on workers compensation leave from an injury received while working for the employer. Employees on a approved unpaid leave of absence shall not incur a break of seniority however, while on such leave employee shall not accrue vacation time.

LENGTH OF SERVICE		VACATION HOURS
	<u>OFFICE</u>	ROAD & BRIDGE
less than 1 year	none	none
1 year but less than 5 years	70	80
5 years but less than 13 years	105	120
13 years but less than 20 years	140	160
20 years or more	175	200

<u>Section 31.2.</u> Vacation is credited each biweekly pay period at the following rates:

	J F 1 J F 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
ANNUAL VACATION	CREDITED PER
ENTITLED TO	<u>PAY PERIOD</u>
	OFFICE EMPLOYEES
70 hours	2.7 hours
105 hours	4.0 hours
140 hours	5.4 hours
175 hours	6.7 hours
	ROAD & BRIDGE
80 hours	3.1 hours
120 hours	4.6 hours
160 hours	6.2 hours
200 hours	7.7 hours

Section 31.3. No employee will be entitled to vacation leave nor payment for accumulated vacation under any circumstances until he/she has completed one (1) year of employment with the County.

<u>Section 31.4.</u> Vacations will be scheduled in accordance with the workload requirements of the individual work units. All vacation dates are subject to the prior approval of the Engineer or his designee.

<u>Section 31.5.</u> Request for vacation will be submitted during the month of March of each calendar year. When two or more employees request the same vacation leave period the request of the senior employee will be granted and the less senior employee will be required to request an alternate period.

Vacation requests received after March will be granted, based upon workload requirements and determined by the first submitted request. If two or more employees submit their request on the same day, the determining factor will be seniority.

The parties recognize that the Engineer has the authority to determine the number of employees within each work unit that may be on vacation leave at any given time.

In case of an emergency the Engineer reserves the right to cancel any employee's vacation and require him/her to return to work immediately upon notification.

<u>Section 31.6.</u> Vacations requests of more than one (1) day shall be made two (2) days in advance of taking such leave unless circumstances would prevent the employee from giving such advance notice.

Requests for vacation of one (1) day or less shall be submitted to an employee's immediate supervisor no later than onehalf ($\frac{1}{2}$) hour prior to an employee's scheduled starting time.

Section 31.7. Generally, vacation leave shall be taken by an employee between the year in which it was accrued and the next anniversary date of employment. However, the employee may elect to accumulate vacation from year to year. Such accumulation of vacation shall be limited to a maximum of three (3) years.

ARTICLE 32 INSURANCE

Section 32.1. Annually, employees shall be offered the same health insurance benefits/plan options as all other Belmont County non-bargaining unit employees as established by the Board of County Commissioners. Any change in employee's premium costs resulting in improvement, or

additions to employee's benefits shall be administered in accordance with the terms set forth by the Belmont County Board of Commissioners. The Employer shall meet and discuss any such additions, improvements, or changes made to the employee's benefits prior to any implementation.

<u>Section 32.2.</u> Bargaining unit employees shall be required to pay the same monthly health insurance premium contribution as all other County non-bargaining unit employees of Belmont County electing coverage on the County's health insurance plan. Bargaining unit employees will be eligible to receive County prescription coverage the same as all other County non-bargaining employees electing prescription coverage.

<u>Section 32.3.</u> The employer agrees to provide any new insurance programs that the Commissioners add during the life of the contract.

Section 32.4. For each month that an employee is in active pay status, the employer shall pay its share of the premium for that month. However, the employer shall not be liable and will not pay for any portion of any monthly premiums ninety (90) calendar days after an employee is not in active pay status for any reasons. At such time the employer ceases premium payment, the employee shall assume responsibility to pay the entire monthly premium costs for all medical and hospitalization benefits, providing such employee elects to continue coverage as provided under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA).

Section 32.5. Any employee who is covered under a spouse hospitalization insurance plan, CHAMPUS, or other acceptable hospitalization plan, may elect to waive hospitalization insurance coverage provided by the employer. In the event such employee elects to waive coverage he/she will be awarded a yearly allotment in an amount determined by the Belmont County Board of County Commissioners. The annual allotment will be provided to employees electing to waive coverage in quarterly allotments. Proof of other hospitalization insurance coverage must be provided to the employer prior to any waiver or payment becomes effective. Such proof of other hospitalization must be submitted during each open enrollment period.

<u>Section 32.6.</u> For the duration of this Agreement the Employer will contribute the following amounts to the Ohio AFSCME Care Plan for Dental Level II on behalf of each bargaining unit employee for the listed benefits under the Plan:

(A) Effective upon signing and each month for the duration of this Agreement the sum of thirty-four (\$34.00) per month per each bargaining unit employee for Dental Level II.

ARTICLE 33 LIABILITY INSURANCE

<u>Section 33.1.</u> Subject to the terms of the contract with the carrier employees in the bargaining unit will be covered by the countywide liability insurance policy.

ARTICLE 34 RETIREMENT PAY

Section 34.1. - Retirement

- A. Employees having a minimum of ten (10) years' service in public employment or who qualify for retirement under the applicable pension plan and who elect to retire under the applicable pension plan of the Employer shall, at the time of retirement, receive a lump sum payment for fifty percent (50%) of accrued but unused sick leave to a maximum amount of fifty per cent (50%) of one hundred and twenty (120) days.
- B. Additionally, Employees electing to retire under the provisions of this Section 34.1 shall receive payment for any and all accrued vacation leave to a maximum amount of three (3) years accrual at the rate as determined in Article 31 above.

<u>Section 34.2. - Separation from Employment</u> Employees separated from employment for any reason other than retirement shall, at the time of separation be entitled to a lump sum payment for all accrued but unused vacation hours to the maximum amounts outlined in Section 34.1 above. Payment of accrued but unused sick leave shall be made to Employees should they become disabled or laid off for a period extending beyond eighteen (18) months.

Section 34.3. - Death Benefit In the event of an Employee's death and regardless of an Employee's years of service, the amounts of sick leave and vacation leave outlined in Section 34.1 A and B shall be paid to the Employee's spouse or estate if there is no surviving spouse.

ARTICLE 35 WAGES

Section 35.1.

Effective May 20, 2024, employees shall receive a four percent (4.0%) wage increase. Effective May 1, 2025, employees shall receive a three percent (3.0%) wage increase. Effective May 1, 2026, employees shall receive a three percent (3.0%) wage increase.

The following hourly wage rates shall be applicable on the effective dates as indicated below for each bargaining unit employee occupying one of the classifications as listed herein:

CLASSIFICATION	HOURLY WAGE RATE
Auto Body and Equipment Repair Wo	orker\$27.73
Bridge Worker I	
Bridge Worker II	
Clerk	
Drafting Technician I	
Drafting Technician II	
Equipment Operator I	
Equipment Operator II	
Highway Worker I	
Highway Worker II	\$25.95
Mechanic I	
Mechanic II	\$27.73
Sign Worker	
Tax Map Clerk I	
Welder I	
Welder II	
GIS Technician	
EFFECTIVE: May 1, 2025, Wage Table to R	
CL A SSIEICATION	HOUDLY WACE DATE
Auto Body and Equipment Repair Wo	orker\$28.56
Bridge Worker I	\$26.73
Bridge Worker II	\$27.70
Clerk	
Drafting Technician I	\$25.61
Drafting Technician II	
Equipment Operator I	
Equipment Operator II	\$28.03
Highway Worker I	
Highway Worker II	
Mechanic I	
Mechanic II	
Sign Worker	
Tax Map Clerk I	
Welder I	
Welder II	
GIS Technician	
EFFECTIVE: May 1, 2026, Wage Table to F	
CLASSIFICATION	HOURLY WAGE RATE

EFFECTIVE: May 20, 2024, Wage Table to Reflect a 4.0% Increase

Auto Body and Equipment Repair Worker	\$29.41
Bridge Worker I	\$27.53
Bridge Worker II	\$28.53
Clerk	
Drafting Technician I	
Drafting Technician II	
Equipment Operator I	\$28.53
Equipment Operator II	
Highway Worker I	\$24.57
Highway Worker II	\$27.53
Mechanic I	\$27.80
Mechanic II	
Sign Worker	
Tax Map Clerk I	
Welder I	
Welder II	
GIS Technician	
2525	

<u>Section 35.2 Boot Allowance</u> – Bargaining unit employees working on the Bridge Crew and Mechanic only shall receive up to \$50.00 annually, with receipt(s) for the purchase of boots.

ARTICLE 36 SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

<u>Section 36.1.</u> Should any part of this Agreement or any provisions contained herein be declared invalid by operation of law by a tribunal of competent jurisdiction, it shall be of no further force and effect, but such invalidation of such part or provision shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof and they shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 36.2. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is determined invalid, the parties shall meet as soon as is practical, but not later than thirty (30) days, in an effort to negotiate a legal alternative provision on the same subject matter.

ARTICLE 37 WAIVER IN CASE OF EMERGENCY

<u>Section 37.1.</u> In cases of emergency declared by the President of the United States, the Governor of the State of Ohio, the Board of Belmont County Commissioners, the Belmont County Engineer, the Federal or State legislature, such as acts of God or civil disorder, the following conditions of this Agreement shall automatically be suspended:

- A. time limits for Management or the Union's replies on grievances; and,
- B. all work rules and/or agreements and practices relating to the assignment of all Department employees.

Section 37.2. Upon the termination of the emergency should valid grievances exist, they shall be processed in accordance with the provisions outlined in the grievance procedure of this Agreement and shall proceed from the point in the grievance procedure to which they (the grievance(s)) had properly progressed.

ARTICLE 38 DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING PROGRAM

Section 38.1. Compliance The Union and the Employer agree that the Engineer and its Employees have the responsibility to comply with the Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) regulations, including having an anti-alcohol and drug testing program for positions which require a CDL for the performance of their duties and participating in the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration's (FMCSA) Drug and Alcohol Clearinghouse.

Section 38.2. Basic Requirements In accordance with the regulations set forth under the Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration, the Employer is required to test employees in transportation who drive commercial motor vehicles requiring a CDL to operate for the presence of alcohol and prohibited drugs and provide an Employee Assistance Program. "Prohibited drugs" mean any of the following substances specified in Schedule I or Schedule II of the Controlled Substance Act: marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine (PCP). The testing is conducted through analysis of a covered employees' urine. Additionally, the Employer and Union recognize that the Employer shall participate and comply with all requirements outlined in the FMCSA Drug and Alcohol Clearinghouse as required, including reporting any failed and refused drug and alcohol tests by CDL drivers.

<u>Section 38.3. Anti-Drug Plan</u> The Employer is required to maintain and follow a written anti-drug plan. The Belmont County Engineer Department Anti-Drug and Alcohol Plan is designed to comply with all the methods and procedures required.

ARTICLE 39 COMMERCIAL DRIVERS LICENSE

<u>Section 39.1.</u> Employees presently employed with the Belmont County Engineer Department and who are required to have Commercial Drivers License (CDL) shall be reimbursed for the cost of renewing such license. Newly hired personnel shall be required to have a Commercial Drivers License in order to be considered qualified for employment with the exception of those classifications not requiring CDL in the performance of their work.

ARTICLE 40 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

<u>Section 40.1.</u> The Employer shall have available to all Employees a certified Employee Assistance Program Counselor. Confidentiality of employees who voluntarily or by referral use the services of the EAP will be strictly maintained by the parties.

ARTICLE 41 ON-CALL PAY

The Engineer, or designee, shall maintain an on-call schedule for bargaining unit employees for after regular working hour emergency calls. The on-call list shall be for a period of three (3) months. Employees volunteering to be on-call for the three (3) month period, shall select the week that they are on-call based upon seniority. Employees volunteering to be on-call shall be required to fill all the weeks of the three (3) month on-call period. The employee's on-call week shall begin at the end of the workday on Monday and continue through the start of the following Monday. Each week of the on-call period shall require two (2) employees. Employees shall be paid their on-call pay the pay period after being on-call and shall receive ninety dollars (\$90) per person for the week that they are on call.

All employees possessing a CDL shall be eligible for the on-call list.

Employees shall be permitted to voluntarily sign-up for the on-call list. In the event fewer than 13 employees volunteer, the Employer shall select employees to the on-call list based on the reverse order of seniority on a rotational basis. Once an employee is selected to be on-call by the Employer, the Employer shall move to the next name on the seniority list.

The on-call employees are required to not only respond to all emergency calls received after regular working hours during the weeks that they are on-call, but also be fit to respond to all emergency call received after regular working hours during the weeks that they are on-call. A failure to respond (or be able to respond) may result in progressive discipline consistent with Article 8, Discipline and Discharge. Responses shall either be in person or by telephone. When an employee responds, the employee shall write in the time that call was received and note the time and reason of the call on his time sheet. The employee shall also note the time that the response was concluded for compensation purposes. Employees shall receive the appropriate call-in pay consistent with Article 21, Call-In.

In the event employees wish to switch weeks that they are on-call with one another, they may do so with prior written notice to the Department Head. If it is necessary to switch days that an employee is on-call, employees shall provide notice to the Supervisor, but that shall not change the on-call pay. However, the employee responding will receive the appropriate compensation for the call-out. If an employee fails to respond to a call-out after switching weeks with another employee, the employee who is originally on-call may be disciplined for the failure to respond. The Employer may switch an employee's on-call week if the employee is approved to take a pre-scheduled vacation. Employees shall provide the Employer with a prioritized listing of weeks to be on-call in the event of a preapproved vacation. In the event it is necessary to move someone's on-call week, efforts will be made to "switch" to a preferred week based upon seniority. The prioritized listing shall be provided by employees on, or before, the Wednesday before the end of the quarter.

Employees on an approved medical leave of absence shall not be scheduled for on-call while on an approved medical leave. Employees on approved medical leaves shall be "skipped" during the rotation.

In the event an on-call employee is called-out, they shall have thirty (30) minutes to return the supervisor's phone call. If the supervisor does not receive a call within twenty (20) minutes from the on-call employee, the supervisor may call another employee. The on-call employee is still required to call the supervisor within 30 minutes. The supervisor will advise the employee whether it is necessary to respond. If the employee is not required to respond, they shall not receive the additional call-out pay.

The on-call employees shall be responsible for assessing the emergency and determining whether additional personnel are necessary for responding after discussing the matter with a supervisor. In the event additional personnel are required, employees shall be called in the following order: (1) the voluntary overtime list and then (2) from the entire Engineer's Office in the reverse order of seniority.

ARTICLE 42 DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 42.1. This Agreement shall be effective May 1, 2024, and shall remain in full force and effect until midnight April 30, 2027.

Section 42.2. If either party desires to modify or and this Agreement, it shall give written notice of such intent no earlier than ninety (90) calendar days prior to the expiration date, nor later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement the process required by SERB. The parties shall commence negotiations upon receiving notice of intent.

<u>Section 42.3.</u> Should either party desire to terminate this Agreement they shall give written notice by certified mail to the other party, ten (10) days in advance of the desired termination date which shall not be before the termination date provided for in Section 42.1 above.

Section 42.4. The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right to make demands and proposals on any subject matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the Engineer and the Union for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unequivocally waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated, to bargain collectively or individually with respect to any subject matter referred to or covered in this Agreement, or with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge of either or both parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

<u>Section 42.5.</u> This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties.

Executed at St. Clairsville, Ohio this 12th day of June, 2024

SIGNATURÉ PAGE

FOR THE UNION:	FOR THE EMPLOYER:
	Terry Lively /s/
Breen McNally, AFSCME Staff Rep.	Terry Lively, P.E., P.S., County Engineer
	Stephany Crist /s/
	Stephany Crist
	Dwayne Leach
	Keith Luyster
	Ed Bond
Approved as to Form:	Belmont County Commissioners:
Jacob Manning /s/	Jerry Echemann /s/
Prosecuting Attorney	J. P. Dutton /s/
e ,	Josh Meyer /s/
Upon roll call the vote was as follows:	•
•	Mr. Echemann Yes
	Mr. Meyer Yes
	Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF THE FY 2024 CBDG COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ALLOCATION PROGRAM APPLICATION

TO THE STATE OF OHIO OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF THE 2024 CDBG COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ALLOCATINO PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE STATE OF OHIO- OFFICE OF COMMUNIYT DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, the Ohio Office of Community Development has made available Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Community Development Allocation for projects benefiting low-to-moderate income persons, and;

WHERAS, the Belmont County Commissioners have eligible community development projects in need of funding.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission President Jerry Echemann be authorized to apply for CDBG Community Development Allocation Program funds from the Ohio Office of Community Development in the amount of \$280,000 to undertake various community development projects in the Villages of Bellaire and Bridgeport and the City of Martins Ferry in Belmont County, as part of the Community Development Allocation Program.

Motion made by Commissioner <u>Echemann</u>, seconded by Commissioner <u>Meyer</u> to adopt the foregoing Resolution and upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes
Mr. Meyer Yes
Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF THE FY 2024 BELMONT COUNTY COMMUNITY HOUSING IMPACT AND PRESERVATION PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE STATE OF OHIO, OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, the Belmont County Commissioners have determined a need to upgrade the housing stock of the county and provide grant funds to low and moderate income households for this purpose and;

WHEREAS, the Ohio Office of Community Development has made available on a competitive basis funds for this purpose;

BE IT RESOLVED; that Commission President Jerry Echemann be authorized to apply for \$700,000 from the Ohio Office of Community Development to undertake Private Rehabilitation, Home Repair and Home Repair-Septic activities in the County as well as the City of Martins Ferry with the 2024 Community Housing Impact and Preservation Program.

Motion made by Commissioner Echemann, seconded by Commissioner Meyer to adopt the foregoing Resolution and upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes
Mr. Meyer Yes
Mr. Dutton Yes

SERVICES AND COMMUNITY ACTION COMMISSION OF BELMONT COUNTY

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve and sign the modification to the Youth Services Contract entered into on July 11, 2023, between Belmont County Department of Job & Family Services and the Community Action Commission of Belmont County to increase the maximum contract amount from \$457,723.00 to \$537,723.00.

Note: The extra funding is needed due to the increase in the number of youth being served.

Modification #1 to the

Purchase of the Performance of Services Contract Contract Period for Revision: July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024PARTIES

The parties to this agreement are as follows:

The Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services Purchaser:

> 68145 Hammond Rd. St. Clairsville, OH 43950

740-695-1075

The Community Action Commission of Belmont County Contractor:

153 1/2 West Main Street St. Clairsville, OH 43950

(740)695-0293 UEI: LAG1P41TUJM3

This modification is to increase the existing contract amount of \$457,723 to \$537,723 which is an additional \$50,000 of WIOA Youth Funds (CFDA # 17 .259) and including \$30,000 of WIOA Dislocated Worker (CFDA # 17 .278), which is allowable to serve Adult eligible participants using code FWP-showing the expenditure is for Adult costs under the Dislocated Worker program.

	Original		Revised
	Contract	Increase	Contract
TANF	302,905.00		302,905.00
TANF Admin	25,000.00		25,000.00
WIOA Youth	129,818.00	50,000.00	179,818.00
WIOA Dislocated Worker(to serve Adult eligible costs)	-	30,000.00	30,000.00
Total	\$457,723.00	\$80,000.00	\$537,723.00

This extension is for the program year, July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024. All other original terms and conditions of this contract remain in effect.

SIGNATURES

Belmont Community Action Commission of Belmont County Department of

Job and Family Services: County: <u>Jeffery Felton /s/</u> <u> Alaire King /s/</u> Jeffery L. Felton, Director Alaire King, Director 6/6/2024 6/5/2024

Date Date

BELMONT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: Jerry Echemann 6-12-24 Jerry Echemann Date J. P. Dutton /s/ 6/12/24 J. P. Dutton Date 6/12/24 Josh Meyer /s/ Josh Meyer Date APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jacob Manning /s/ **Jacob Manning, Assistant Prosecutor** Date

Belmont County Prosecutor's Office

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

6/5/2024

IN THE MATTER OF ENTERING INTO RENEWAL

OF VENDOR AGREEMENTS ON BEHALF OF BCDJFS

FOR PROVIDING GASOLINE TO TITLE XIX (19) ELIGIBLE PERSONS

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to enter into a renewal of a Vendor Agreement on behalf of the Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services for the purpose of providing gasoline to Title XIX (19) eligible persons who have medical appointments outside the local area, effective July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, as follows:

VENDOR MAXIMUM BILLABLE AMOUNT

\$12,000.00 Marathon Gas, dba D&D Fast Foods NSB/2 Partners, LLC \$12,000.00 Zeake's Sunoco & Sun Shop Exxon \$12,000.00

BELMONT COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES

VENDOR AGREEMENT

is made and entered into this 12th day of June 2024 by and between the Belmont County This agreement to provide _ gasoline Department of Job and Family Services, hereinafter referred to as Department, and Marathon Gas dba D & D Fast Foods, a provider of Title XIX Services, hereinafter referred to as Provider. This agreement will be effective from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 inclusive, unless otherwise terminated.

GENERAL REGULATIONS

- A. Provider agrees that the use or disclosure of any information concerning qualified recipients for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased services is prohibited except upon written consent of the recipients or their guardians.
- B. The Provider understands that this written agreement supersedes all oral agreements.
- C. The Provider agrees to hold harmless the County Department of Job and Family Services, the Board of County Commissioners of the county in which the Department is located, and the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services against all liability, loss, damage, and/ or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this agreement.
- D. The Provider agrees that in the performance of this agreement there shall be no discrimination against any client because of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or handicapped conditions as specified in the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all subsequent amendments. It is further agreed discrimination and the right to and method of appeal will be made available to all persons served under this agreement.
- E. In the event Provider receives an overpayment, Provider agrees to repay the Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services the amount to which he/she was not entitled.
- F. In the event that state and/or federal reimbursement is no longer available to the Department, therefore, requiring changes or

termination of this agreement, such changes or termination will be effective on the date that state and/or federal reimbursement is no longer available, or, later as otherwise stipulated by the Department. This agreement may be terminated by the Provider or the Department upon seven (7) days written notice. Failure to honor the terms of this agreement and/or related state, federal, or local regulations shall result in the immediate termination of this agreement. If any of the terms of this agreement change, the Provider must notify the Department immediately.

- G. Policy that the Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules and regulations in the Administrative Code governing service delivery, including insurance.
- H. Eligibility for Services: The County Department of Job and Family Services will determine eligibility for all service recipients directly. Eligibility of individuals to receive purchase services shall be determined in accordance with the policy and procedures established by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services in the Administrative Code.
- I. Amendment of Agreement: This agreement may be amended at any time by a written amendment signed by both parties and submitted to the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services in the manner required by state regulations.

PAYMENT PROCEDURES

The Department of Job and Family Services agrees to pay the Provider actual cost per gallon Unit for Transportation.

The maximum amount billable under this agreement is \$12,000.00

The Provider understands that the payment for all services provided in accordance with the provisions of this agreement depends upon the availability of county, state, and federal matching funds.

The Provider understands that a recipient, for whom services are provided, may be required by the Department of Job and Family Services.

Other than this fee set by the Department, no additional fees may be charged for services rendered under this agreement.

The Provider agrees to submit an invoice to the Department monthly within five (5) working days following the last working day of the billing period. The Department agrees to review the invoices and authorize with adjustments, if needed, reimbursement for services provided within fifteen (15) to twenty (20) working days of the receipt of the invoice.

Duplicate Billing: Provider warrants that claims made to the County Department of Job and Family Services for payment for purchased services shall be for actual services rendered to eligible individuals and do not duplicate claims made by provider to other sources of funds for the same service.

I hereby understand and agree to the terms of this agreement.

This agreement signed on 5th day of June, 2024.		
Jeffery Felton /s/		5/20/2024
Jeffery L. Felton, Director	Date	
Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services		
Tina Williams /s/		5/20/2024
Tina Williams	Date	
D&D Fast Foods, Inc.		
2998 Belmont Street		
Bellaire OH 43906		
KellyTina2423@aol.com		
J. P. Dutton /s/		6/12/24
J. P. Dutton	Date	
Belmont County Commissioner		
Jerry Echemann /s/		6-12-24
Jerry Echemann	Date	
Belmont County Commissioner		
Josh Meyer /s/		6/12/24
Josh Meyer	Date	
Belmont County Commissioner		
Approved as to form:		
Jacob Manning /s/		5/20/2024
Jacob Manning, Assistant Prosecutor	Date	
Relmont County Prosecutor's Office		

BELMONT COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES

VENDOR AGREEMENT

This agreement to provide <u>gasoline</u> is made and entered into this <u>12th</u> <u>day of June 2024</u> by and between the Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services, hereinafter referred to as Department, and <u>NSB/2 Partners, LLC</u>, hereinafter referred to as Provider. This agreement will be effective from <u>July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025</u> inclusive unless otherwise terminated.

GENERAL REGULATIONS

- A. Provider agrees that the use or disclosure of any information concerning qualified recipients for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased services is prohibited except upon written consent of the recipients or their guardians.
- B. The Provider understands that this written agreement supersedes all oral agreements.
- C. The Provider agrees to hold harmless the County Department of Job and Family Services, the Board of County Commissioners of the county in which the Department is located, and the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services against all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this agreement.
- D. The Provider agrees that in the performance of this agreement there shall be no discrimination against any client because of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or handicapped conditions as specified in the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all subsequent amendments. It is further agreed discrimination and the right to and method of appeal will be made available to all persons served under this agreement.
- E. In the event Provider receives an overpayment, Provider agrees to repay the Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services the amount to which he/she was not entitled.
- F. In the event that state and/or federal reimbursement is no longer available to the Department, therefore, requiring changes or termination of this agreement, such changes or termination will be effective on the date that state and/or federal reimbursement is no longer available, or, later as otherwise stipulated by the Department. This agreement may be terminated by the Provider or the Department upon seven (7) days written notice. Failure to honor the terms of this agreement and/or related state, federal, or local regulations shall result in the immediate termination of this agreement. If any of the terms of this agreement change, the Provider must notify the Department immediately.
- G. Policy that the Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules and regulations in the Administrative Code governing service delivery, including insurance.
- H. Eligibility for Services: The County Department of Job and Family Services will determine eligibility for all service recipients directly. Eligibility of individuals to receive purchase services shall be determined in accordance with the policy and procedures established by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services in the Administrative Code.
- I. Amendment of Agreement: This agreement may be amended at any time by a written amendment signed by both parties and submitted to the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services in the manner required by state regulations.

PAYMENT PROCEDURES

The Department of Job and Family Services agrees to pay the Provider actual cost per gallon Unit for Transportation.

The maximum amount billable under this agreement is \$12,000.00.

The Provider understands that the payment for all services provided in accordance with the provisions of this agreement depends upon the availability of county, state, and federal matching funds.

The Provider understands that a recipient, for whom services are provided, may be required by the Department of Job and Family Services.

Other than this fee set by the Department, no additional fees may be charged for services rendered under this agreement.

The Provider agrees to submit an invoice to the Department monthly within five (5) working days following the last working day of the billing period. The Department agrees to review the invoices and authorize with adjustments, if needed, reimbursement for services provided within fifteen (15) to twenty (20) working days of the receipt of the invoice.

Duplicate Billing: Provider warrants that claims made to the County Department of Job and Family Services for payment for purchased services shall be for actual services rendered to eligible individuals and do not duplicate claims made by provider to other sources of funds for the same service.

I hereby understand and agree to the terms of this agreement.

This agreement signed on <u>5th</u> day of <u>Julie, 2024</u> .		
Jeffery L. Felton /s/		5/22/2024
Jeffery L. Felton, Director	Date	
Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services		
Gurinderjit Sosandhu /s/		5-20-24
Gurinderjit Sosandhu, Owner	Date	
NSB/2 Partners		
45820 National Road		
St. Clairsville OH 43950		
J. P. Dutton /s/		6/12/24
J. P. Dutton	Date	
Belmont County Commissioner		
Jerry Echemann /s/		6-12-24
Jerry Echemann	Date	
Belmont County Commissioner		
Josh Meyer /s/		6/12/24
Josh Meyer	Date	
Belmont County Commissioner		
Approved as to form:		
Jacob Manning /s/		May 24, 2024
Jacob Manning, Assistant Prosecutor	Date	
Belmont County Prosecutor's Office		

BELMONT COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES

VENDOR AGREEMENT

This agreement to provide <u>gasoline</u> is made and entered into this <u>12th</u> day of <u>June 2024</u> by and between the Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services, hereinafter referred to as Department, and <u>Zeake's Sunoco and Carryout</u>, and <u>Sun Shop Exxon and Carryout</u>, both the same owner and provider of <u>Title XIX Services</u>, hereinafter referred to as Provider. This agreement will be effective from <u>July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025</u> inclusive, unless otherwise terminated.

GENERAL REGULATIONS

- A. Provider agrees that the use or disclosure of any information concerning qualified recipients for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased services is prohibited except upon written consent of the recipients or their guardians.
- B. The Provider understands that this written agreement supersedes all oral agreements.
- C. The Provider agrees to hold harmless the County Department of Job and Family Services, the Board of County Commissioners of the county in which the Department is located, and the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services against all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this agreement.
- D. The Provider agrees that in the performance of this agreement there shall be no discrimination against any client because of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or handicapped conditions as specified in the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all subsequent amendments. It is further agreed discrimination and the right to and method of appeal will be made available to all persons served under this agreement.
- E. In the event Provider receives an overpayment, Provider agrees to repay the Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services the amount to which he/she was not entitled.
- F. In the event that state and/or federal reimbursement is no longer available to the Department, therefore, requiring changes or termination of this agreement, such changes or termination will be effective on the date that state and/or federal reimbursement is no longer available, or, later as otherwise stipulated by the Department. This agreement may be terminated by the Provider or the Department upon seven (7) days written notice. Failure to honor the terms of this agreement and/or related state, federal, or local regulations shall result in the immediate termination of this agreement. If any of the terms of this agreement change, the Provider must notify the Department immediately.
- G. Policy that the Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules and regulations in the Administrative Code governing service delivery, including insurance.
- H. Eligibility for Services: The County Department of Job and Family Services will determine eligibility for all service recipients directly. Eligibility of individuals to receive purchase services shall be determined in accordance with the policy and procedures established by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services in the Administrative Code.
- I. Amendment of Agreement: This agreement may be amended at any time by a written amendment signed by both parties and submitted to the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services in the manner required by state regulations.

PAYMENT PROCEDURES

The Department of Job and Family Services agrees to pay the Provider \$ actual cost per gallon Unit for Transportation.

The maximum amount billable under this agreement is \$12,000.00

1002 N. Lincoln Avenue Bridgeport OH 43912

The Provider understands that the payment for all services provided in accordance with the provisions of this agreement depends upon the availability of county, state, and federal matching funds.

The Provider understands that a recipient, for whom services are provided, may be required by the Department of Job and Family Services. Other than this fee set by the Department, no additional fees may be charged for services rendered under this agreement.

The Provider agrees to submit an invoice to the Department monthly within five (5) working days following the last working day of the billing period. The Department agrees to review the invoices and authorize with adjustments, if needed, reimbursement for services provided within fifteen (15) to twenty (20) working days of the receipt of the invoice.

Duplicate Billing: Provider warrants that claims made to the County Department of Job and Family Services for payment for purchased services shall be for actual services rendered to eligible individuals and do not duplicate claims made by provider to other sources of funds for the same service.

funds for the same service.		
I hereby understand and agree to the terms of this agreement.		
This agreement signed on 5th day of June, 2024.		
Jeffery Felton /s/	5/20/2024	
Jeffery L. Felton, Director	Date	
Belmont County Department of Job and Family Services		
Anthony Zeakes /s/	5/20/2024	
Anthony Zeakes, Owner	Date	
Sun Shop Exxon and Zeakes' Sunoco		

Zoe02@comcast.net

20002(ta)0011100t			
J. P. Dutton /s/	_		6/12/24
J. P. Dutton		Date	
Belmont County Commissioner			
Jerry Echemann /s/	_		6-12-24
Jerry Echemann		Date	
Belmont County Commissioner			
Josh Meyer /s/	_		6/12/24
Josh Meyer		Date	
Belmont County Commissioner			
Approved as to form:			
Jacob Manning /s/	_		5/20/2024
Jacob Manning, Assistant Prosecutor		Date	
Belmont County Prosecutor's Office			
Upon roll call the vote was as follows:			
-	Mr. Echemann		Yes
	Mr. Meyer		Yes
	Mr. Dutton		Yes

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE QUOTE FROM

ERB ELECTRIC COMPANY/JAIL

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the quote from ERB Electric Company in the amount of \$795.00 to install software license and software upgrade on the phone system at the Belmont County Jail. Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

> Mr. Echemann Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE QUOTE FROM

ERB ELECTRIC COMPANY/SSOBC

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the quote from ERB Electric Company in the amount of \$2,975.00 to furnish and install the following at Senior Services of Belmont County:

- Three new Kilcher post top fixtures on existing posts.
- Three new Keystone Bullet flood lights mounted on RAB MP19B posts to light the tree.
- Ten new 12 volt LED lamps in the existing fixtures.

Note: The lighting was struck by lightning. An insurance claim was turn in and approved.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE QUOTE FROM

ERB ELECTRIC COMPANY/ANIMAL SHELTER

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the quote from ERB Electric Company in the amount of \$7,418.00 to furnish and install the following at the Belmont County Animal Shelter:

- One SecuraKey 2 door card access panels.
- Card access on two doors.
- One shut off switch for back door.
- One power supply with battery backup.
- 50 key fobs.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING PURCHASE OF ONE (1) 2022

FORD EXPLORER FROM WHITESIDE OF ST. CLAIRSVILLE, INC.

FOR THE DIVISIONAL COURTS PROBATION DEPARTMENT

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the purchase of one (1) 2022 Ford Explorer from Whiteside of St. Clairsville, Inc., in the amount of \$38,000.00 for the Divisional Courts Probation Department. Note: This will be a replacement vehicle and purchased using Probation Grant funds.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

Mr. Echemann introduced Caleb Shriver, S. E. Representative for Senator J. D. Vance who was in attendance.

Sheriff Dave Lucas and Deputy Logan Havas, Litter Control Officer **Re: Litter Control Program**

Sheriff Lucas said, "Deputy Havas will be working closely with all of the township trustees, like the previous officers. With the thanks of the J.B. Green Team, we're able to get out there to make our community look better. One thing is, we want to draw people here, business and everything like that, and they're not going to come here if our county looks bad." Sheriff Lucas noted J.B. Green Team pays for everything involved in the litter control program. Deputy Havas said he has worked with the Belmont County Sheriff's Department since 2020 as a deputy and recently took the position of Litter Control Officer.

RECESS

Bid Opening-West End Force Main Improvements

IN THE MATTER OF BID OPENING WEST END FORCE MAIN IMPROVEMENTS

This being the day and 10:00 a.m. being the hour that bids were to be on file in the Commissioners' Office for the West End Force Main Improvements; they proceeded to open the following bids:

BID BOND BID AMOUNT NAME **Border Patrol, LLC** X \$699,996.00 86120 Water Works Road

Hopedale, Ohio 43976

Terrain Energy, LLC X \$644,104.00

47779 Morgan Road St. Clairsville, Ohio 43950

Ohio-West Virginia Excavating X \$633,300.00

PO Box 128

Powhatan Point, Ohio 43942

James White Construction X \$727,000.00

4156 Freedom Way Weirton, WV 26062

Present for opening: Kelly Porter, District Director and Jeff Vaughn, Project Engineer.

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to turn over all bids received for the West End Force Main Improvements, to Kelly Porter, Belmont County Water and Sewer District Director, for review and recommendation.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

Mr. Porter explained this project is at the 208 exit. Love's will be building at that location. This will help with capacity for further development.

IN THE MATTER OF ENTERING EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 10:33 A.M.

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to enter executive session with Katie Bayness, HR Administrator, pursuant to ORC 121.22(G)(1) Personnel Exception to consider the employment and compensation of public employees. Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

Hannah Warrington, HR Administrative Assistant, also present.

IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 12:56 P.M.

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to exit executive session at 12:56 p.m.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

Mr. Echemann said as a result of executive session there are three motions to be considered.

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING THE RESIGNATION OF

CHEYANNE CORNISH, ASSISTANT DOG WARDEN

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the resignation of Cheyanne Cornish, full-time Assistant Dog Warden at the Belmont County Animal Shelter, effective June 14, 2024.

Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF HIRING ALLYSON PERKINS

AS PART-TIME MEDICAL DRIVER/SSOBC

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the hire of Allyson Perkins, part-time Medical Driver at Senior Services of Belmont County, effective June 17, 2024.

*Note: This is a replacement position.*Upon roll call the vote was as follows:

Mr. Echemann Yes Mr. Meyer Yes Mr. Dutton Yes

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN

AFSCME LOCAL 702 AND CHARLIE ARIGONI, DAVID HARTMAN AND

CLYDE KUTCHER AND BELMONT COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the settlement agreement between the AFSCME Local 702 and Charlie Arigoni, David Hartman and Clyde Kutcher and the Belmont County Commissioners.

GRIEVANCE SETTLEMENT BELMONT COUNTY AND AFSCME LOCAL 702

This SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT is between the AFSCME Local 702 (hereinafter the Union), and Charlie Arigoni, David Hartman, and Clyde Kutcher (hereinafter grievants), and the Belmont County Commissioners (hereinafter the Employer) (collectively referred to as "the parties") and shall fully resolve the Grievance received on May 13, 2024.

WHEREAS, the employer consents that hardship may have been caused by taking the county vehicles away from individuals.

WHEREAS, the Union had presented that the loss of the overtime was their concern for the hardship. Timesheets were pulled for the three individuals who drove the vehicles and their overtime for snow removal (or snow related events) was 9 hours for Charlie Arigoni, 9.5 hours for David Hartman, and 9 hours for Clyde Kutcher, for an average of 9.16 hours per person over a year period. Each of these individuals make \$19.44 per hour.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree to the following:

- 1. The Employer agrees to pay each of the three employees a sum of \$178.07 which is their flat rate multiplied by the 9.16 hours.
- 2. The Parties agree that this would be a one-time payment that would be processed through payroll upon agreement from the union and approval by the Belmont County Board of Commissioners.
- 3. This Settlement Agreement shall in no way constitute an admission of wrongdoing by any party hereto and shall serve only to resolve an outstanding dispute between the parties.
- 4. This settlement agreement shall in no way establish a precedent for the resolution of any future matters/grievances for other situations. This settlement shall not be referenced or used in any manner in any future grievance or administrative proceeding related to any article of the parties agreement. Neither party waives any arguments they had regarding the administration of the parties' agreement relating to other situations by way of the resolution entered into in this matter.
- 5. The Union and the Employee agree that the grievance referenced above will be considered withdrawn and resolved.

(signature lines on the following page)

4885-2173-5621 v 1

FOR BELMONT COUNTY		FOR THE UNION
Jerry Coreman		AFSCME Representative
(POD		Charlie Arigoni, Grievant
- Farr		At Also Harring
		David Hartman, Grievant
		Clyde Kutcher, Grievant
Date: 6-12-24		
4885-2173-5621, v. 1		
Upon roll call the vote was as follows:		
	Mr. Echemann Mr. Meyer	Yes Yes
	Mr. Dutton	Yes
IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING		
COMMISSIONERS MEETING AT 12:57 P.M.	to odioven the me	poting at 12:57 n m
Motion made by Mr. Echemann, seconded by Mr. Meyer Upon roll call the vote was as follows:	-	
	Mr. Echemann Mr. Meyer	Yes Yes
	Mr. Dutton	Yes
Read, approved and signed this <u>18th</u> day of <u>June</u> , 2024.		
Jerry Echemann /s/	_	
J. P. Dutton /s/	_ COUNTY COM	MISSIONERS
Josh Meyer /s/	_	
We, Jerry Echemann and Bonnie Zuzak, President and Certify the foregoing minutes of the proceedings of sai Revised Code of Ohio.	Clerk respectively d Board have bee	of the Board of Commissioners of Belmont County, Ohio, do hereby en read, approved and signed as provided for by Sec. 305.11 of the
Jerry Echemann /s/	PRESID	ENT
Bonnie Zuzak /s/	_CLERK	